

7/19/2012

Page 1

STATE OF MICHIGAN  
DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS  
REGULAR MEETING

---

PAGE 1 TO 60

Taken at 7310 Woodward Avenue,  
Central District,  
Detroit, Michigan, 48226,  
Commencing at 3:12 p.m.,  
Thursday, July 19th, 2012,  
Before Elizabeth Koller, CSR-7042.

1 APPEARANCES:  
2 CELIA BANKS WASHINGTON (P54338)  
3 Attorney to the Board  
4 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners  
5 1300 Beaubien, Room 328  
6 Detroit, Michigan 48226  
7 (313) 596-1835  
8 Appearing on behalf of the Board of Police  
9 Commissioners.

10

11 COMMISSIONERS:

12 JEROME WARFIELD, CHAIRMAN

13 DONNELL WHITE, REGULAR MEMBER

14 JESSICA TAYLOR, REGULAR MEMBER

15

16 ALSO PRESENT:

17 GEORGE ANTHONY, SECRETARY

18 BENJAMIN LEE, DEPUTY CHIEF

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 Detroit, Michigan

2 July 19, 2012

3 About 3:12 p.m.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Good afternoon, ladies  
5 and gentlemen. Welcome to the Board of Police  
6 Commissioners Meeting. My name is Jerome Warfield,  
7 Chairman of the Board of Police Commissioners.

8 Serving with me today is my colleague  
9 Commissioner Donnell White, along with representing the  
10 Chief's Office, Deputy Chief Benjamin Lee. We also  
11 have with us at the table our Board Secretary,  
12 Mr. George Anthony. Sir, welcome back.

13 MR. SECRETARY: Thank you.

14 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Could you introduce our  
15 staff for us today, please?

16 MR. SECRETARY: Thank you. George Anthony  
17 Secretary to the Board, for the record. Present we  
18 have Ms. Celia Banks Washington our Attorney to the  
19 Board, Ms. Dalph Watson who is our Director of Police  
20 Personnel, we have also Officer Kent Cooper as well as  
21 Officer Dan Donakowski, who's recording our  
22 proceedings, and I'm sorry --

23 REPORTER: Beth Koller.

24 MR. SECRETARY: Beth Koller from Hanson Court  
25 Reporting Service. It's been a long vacation. That

1 completes the introductions, sir.

2 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Secretary.  
3 At this time I'm going to ask if Commissioner White  
4 will lead us in our invocation today.

5 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Certainly. Let us  
6 pause. Dear Heavenly Father, we ask that you bless and  
7 guide us in this meeting. Put us into like mindedness  
8 that we may come together to better serve this  
9 community, your people. We ask that you watch over the  
10 men and women of this Department, watch over the  
11 Commissioners, and all of those who are connected to  
12 serving your people. We ask these things in your  
13 mighty name and we pray. Amen.

14 AUDIENCE: Amen.

15 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner.  
16 As you can see we're still waiting on one Commissioner  
17 in order that we may have a voting quorum and there are  
18 some voting issue on our agenda so we'll move through  
19 our agenda until we have quorum and then we'll come  
20 back and vote, but until then we'll just meet as a  
21 committee of the whole until we get quorum.

22 Just one, as relates to the Chairperson's  
23 Report, just wanted to reiterate we talked about last  
24 week that there's going to be three resolutions coming  
25 forward as it relates to towing, as it relates to tow

1 rate.

2 We ask that you go on the website and see  
3 those, see the minutes from last week for an update on  
4 that. And then we today we have given out to the  
5 Commissioners the proposed rule changes that was  
6 discussed at the last tow hearing.

7 I believe that we have scheduled the 26th.  
8 Is that a Thursday or the 27th? No, 26th, for us to  
9 vote on what the final rule changes will be. And at  
10 that time those rule changes will be complied and  
11 published and put out for a public hearing. And then  
12 30 days after the 26th of August we will have another  
13 public hearing after this Board discuss and decide to  
14 vote what those rule changes will be, and after that  
15 particular public hearing then we vote them into final  
16 adoption at that time. So we're going to ask the  
17 Commissioners to guide themselves accordingly as  
18 relates to any rule changes to the tow rules.

19 At this time we're going to go over to the  
20 Chief's Office with Deputy Chief Lee for his  
21 presentation at this time.

22 D.C. LEE: We do have a presentation of the  
23 Crime Analysis Unit. It will be done by Lieutenant  
24 Giaquinto.

25 LT. GIAQUINTO: Good afternoon, everyone.

1 AUDIENCE: Good afternoon.

2 LT. GIAQUINTO: Lieutenant Giaquinto,  
3 Commanding Officer of the Crime Analysis Unit for the  
4 Detroit Police Department. Okay. Sherlock Holmes once  
5 said that as the captain -- theorized before one has  
6 data. And we at Crime Analysis make sure that that  
7 doesn't happen to the Detroit Police Department.

8 When you hear the Mayor and the Chief speak  
9 of data-driven policing most of that comes from our  
10 office. We probably do this better than anyone else in  
11 the state. We have had other police agencies come into  
12 see our work product to try to replicate it at their  
13 agencies.

14 Our most valued asset at Crime Analysis is  
15 personnel. Our personnel body has experience in  
16 homicide, violent crime task force, gang enforcement,  
17 carjacking, auto theft, patrol, special operations,  
18 investigation, and community relations.

19 Our unit is primarily divided into two  
20 entities, a GIS and Statical Unit as well as the  
21 Analysis Officers, although there is cross training to  
22 allow for leave and other absences from the Unit.

23 The mapping of data is the first step to that  
24 data-driven approach. One thing we also do is we make  
25 crime mapping available to the public, though our

1 partnership with the Omega Group we provide crime  
2 mapping through crimemapping.com.

3           What crime mapping does is it provides you  
4 spacial information as well as analytical information.  
5 But the key thing, the usefulness to the community is  
6 the availability of crime alerts to be sent directly to  
7 your email or personal device. By signing up for the  
8 service in a selected area and have alerts based on  
9 crime categories that you choose sent to your phone  
10 once they take place, crimemapping.com, I guess, talk  
11 in the background.

12           Our mapping solution for the Department,  
13 however, is a little bit more robust and we have  
14 designed it internally based on open source technology,  
15 so there is no cost in this to the Detroit Police  
16 Department. We generate approximately 600 maps per  
17 week based on 24 hours 7 days 28 day frequency.

18           The map covers and has layers for crime,  
19 arrest, shootings warrants, MDOC, and in the very near  
20 future we're going to have sex offender registry data  
21 as well as those who are in noncompliance status.

22           Although the Department has made great  
23 strides and progress in the computer connectivity to  
24 it's mobile units and scout cars, we have taken it upon  
25 ourself to fill that gap while the Department is trying

1 to make the adjustments where technology is challenged.

2 So we provide stolen vehicle reports which  
3 use to be known as the hot car report which gives our  
4 Officers stolen plates when they don't have LEIN in  
5 their vehicle. We also provide crime summaries for our  
6 executives and members of the Department so they don't  
7 have to go through Chrisnet to review all of the  
8 reports that are generated in that period of time.

9 On top of that, we all are aware of the  
10 consent decree challenges that we have. Our existing  
11 technology did not allow for us to address some of the  
12 audit concerns that the auditors had. So we have  
13 created and made available to our Internet things like  
14 arrests so they can do their arrest audits to fill that  
15 gap where our current technology could not.

16 A big part: Crime patterns. Our offices at  
17 Crime Analysis routinely review reports on burglary,  
18 robberies, sex crimes, for the purpose of pattern  
19 identification. It's great if we get one individual  
20 off the street for a particular crime. We do a much  
21 better service for the community if we can link that  
22 one individual to multiple crimes. So the pattern  
23 detection is what we provide for the Department, as  
24 well.

25 Once we detect a pattern it's distributed



1 directly through email to our Department Executives and  
2 for the rest of the Department through our Internet.  
3 We also email to our regional partners because as we  
4 know crime knows no boundary.

5 One of the more recent things that we did was  
6 help the Chief with his initiative to bring into the  
7 Department a COMP Stat type meeting.

8 The Chief brought in individuals from the  
9 Manhattan Institute and based on their recommendation  
10 from prior implementations of COMP Stat we in turn  
11 replicated and took the best of that for our  
12 Department. The role that Crime Analysis played we  
13 were basically the program development piece for that.

14 All of the programing and software  
15 enhancements fell upon us. So we did the writing of  
16 the program to generate the reports that you see here  
17 and many others. So we implemented the COMP Stat  
18 Meeting and we primarily provided and facilitated  
19 meetings as well as providing executive summaries for  
20 those members, the Chief and the Assistant Chief who  
21 are hosting COMP Stat meetings.

22 For a quick summary, COMP Stat is kind of a  
23 management philosophy. At it's core it's command  
24 accountability, quality of life issues for the  
25 citizens, and reducing crime through problem-solving

1 efforts. We do that through SARA, which is Scanning,  
2 Analyzing, Responding and Assessing. We initially scan  
3 what's taking place throughout the City, analyze it,  
4 develop the response. After implementation we assess  
5 the outcome of that response to see if tweaks or  
6 changes need to be made.

7 We accomplished this within about two weeks  
8 which is quite an accomplishment. Final implementation  
9 was about four weeks because after the initial meeting  
10 there was some changes and adjustments that needed to  
11 be made and we were able to make that, so we completed  
12 that in about four weeks time.

13 Performance Measure: This is something Crime  
14 Analysis has done since my first visit to Crime  
15 Analysis about ten years ago. What we provide are the  
16 command report cards, so to speak. Command profiles  
17 are for the City, the Eastern Precinct, the Western  
18 Precinct, and drill all the way down to the precinct  
19 level. We provide crime summaries and statistical  
20 comparisons up against prior periods, response times,  
21 enforcement.

22 We do precinct target memos which help our  
23 Commander Officers and our Shift Lieutenants identify  
24 those areas within their control that represent the  
25 greatest problem, and we also identify through that the

1 crimes that are taking place in that area.

2 We do trends on arrest statistics, response  
3 times. We also assist in identifying problem locations  
4 in the precinct, those locations that frequently appear  
5 on our radar so that community relations, special  
6 operations, those people can take action. Out of this  
7 come some 300 reports from our office that are posted  
8 directly to the Internet for reporting.

9 The next part is Crime Briefing. So through  
10 Graphical Information System, GIS program that was  
11 written inhouse and is unlike any commercial product  
12 that's out there that does density mapping or hot  
13 spotting, this program specifically allows us to  
14 identify areas in the City of Detroit based on a  
15 particular point how far off of that point and the  
16 frequency of occurrence crime is taking place.

17 We see maps like this that generate what we  
18 refer to as threshold points. We do that for assaults,  
19 gun assaults particularly, auto theft, burglary,  
20 larceny, robbery. We have the capability to expand the  
21 scope, take the distance out. Currently we do it in  
22 about a 28-day period, half-mile distance of each  
23 individual point. We have the ability to change that.  
24 And this is where it all starts for us as far as  
25 analysis goes.

1           We then take those threshold areas and  
2           develop a product that is useful for patrol, immediate  
3           enforcement response, and to assist investigative  
4           personnel in development of leads with at least the  
5           identification of leads that are possible in the  
6           reports that we review.

7           We provide a summary of trend. If we  
8           identify any patterns within the area we identify that.  
9           We assist Command in identifying miscoded reports that  
10          are mischaracterized and wrong crime classification.

11          The next part is where we go beyond the  
12          office. We also include the results of our own  
13          interviews where we go out to the community and we talk  
14          to the victims of crime. We go out and visit scenes  
15          and usually every week, at least once a month we go out  
16          in an enforcement capacity, as well.

17          We take the data that we provide the  
18          Department and test it to make sure it's valid,  
19          relevant, and useful. So part of it is the crime  
20          mapping itself. We show where the crimes are taking  
21          place and what specific crimes in each category is  
22          taking place. We provide for patrol time of day and  
23          day of week analysis so they can see when this is  
24          taking place in the area so they can directly patrol in  
25          that area during those particular times.

1           And this is a new buzz term something that  
2 we've been doing for quite sometime, Predictive  
3 Analysis. What we do is based on the analysis of our  
4 individuals we forecast where crime is most likely to  
5 occur and based on it's geography, the time of day, the  
6 day of week, how crime is moving. You can't see on the  
7 static map, but in our office we look at how crime is  
8 moving, direction of travel and frequency.

9           So based on that we provided and include in  
10 our report some type of predictive analysis for crime  
11 personnel. The report goes through victim analysis,  
12 victimology, the offender, locations, not just limited  
13 where on the street, but the type of locations whether  
14 the burglaries are taking place inside bungalows or  
15 colonials, what type of businesses are being broken  
16 into. So location covers more than just the place on  
17 the map.

18           The approach and entry, how people are  
19 approaching, how robbery offenders are approaching  
20 their victims, how B&Es are entering the residences,  
21 businesses, the method of escape, the weapons that are  
22 used and taken, the MO of the offender.

23           With regards to the immediate response  
24 component we provide a list of known offenders within  
25 that geographic area that are wanted on outstanding

1 warrants from 36th District and 3rd Circuit Court as  
2 well as those individuals who are on absconder status  
3 so that we can immediately respond to that area and  
4 take some action.

5 That data comes to us about once a month, so  
6 we geocode probably somewhere in the neighborhood of  
7 35,000 records every month just so that we can put  
8 offenders in a particular place on the map and utilize  
9 that back in our analysis.

10 Some of the other things, this is less  
11 routine but it is something we do every year is with  
12 regards to the Angel's Night Planning, fireworks,  
13 parades, we provide the GIS support for that. We take  
14 the lead in many of the grant applications with respect  
15 to the statement of problems, what's taking place in  
16 the City of Detroit, to the extent that our office has  
17 actually written some of the language in the statement  
18 of problems for some of the grant applications that  
19 both the City and the Police Department have sought.

20 We do custom mapping. Probably the biggest  
21 thing, the greatest benefit to all of this is our  
22 partnership with the various organizations, community,  
23 professional, corporate. We are a big part of the  
24 youth violence prevention initiative which includes  
25 operation cease fire which we're kicking off, safe

1 routes to school.

2 Some of our partners are Data-Driven Detroit  
3 though which we kind of work smarter, and not harder.  
4 Through them we pass off some of the work that we will  
5 normally do. Arise Detroit, the crime violence  
6 production partnership which is ATF, Delta Project  
7 which is the FBI initiative, Detroit Works, Project  
8 Safe Neighborhoods. We also work closely with  
9 neighborhood groups, block clubs.

10 At the end of all of this we do this  
11 ourselves. We are the programmers for everything that  
12 come out of our office. Some of the things Google Maps  
13 API that's how we provide mapping to the Department,  
14 Google Earth for our COMP Stat Meeting, a lot of  
15 programming, all of that is done inhouse.

16 So I think that kind of sums up Crime  
17 Analysis.

18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Lieutenant.  
19 Questions?

20 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: No.

21 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Lieutenant, a couple  
22 questions. Are text message alerts sent based on  
23 incidents geographically to the citizens in Detroit  
24 through that mechanism that was set up?

25 LT. GIAQUINTO: Yes. Basically you can pick

1 a point on the map, set a distance off in which your  
2 concerned whether it be 100 feet, 500 feet, a half  
3 mile, a mile, and based on how incidents come in and  
4 your selection, you may not want to know about every  
5 assault that take places but you might want to know  
6 about every B&E, you identify that crime category by  
7 selecting it when you sign up for the service.

8 COMMISSIONER WHITE: And you'll receive an  
9 alert each time one of the incidents happens?

10 LT. GIAQUINTO: Correct. That is updated  
11 about three times a day, so not quite realtime, but  
12 pretty good.

13 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Also is this crime  
14 mapping platform, do we have a mobile application? Is  
15 that something we're moving towards where we might have  
16 where individuals can download on their smart phones  
17 or?

18 LT. GIAQUINTO: crimemapping.com has an  
19 Android App. It is in the App Store. It is free. And  
20 Detroit data is available through that.

21 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Also you referenced the  
22 Crime Analysis Team goes out to validate data that has  
23 been collected. What process is done to validate data?

24 LT. GIAQUINTO: Well, it's more validating  
25 the analysis portion that we put out. So on days that



1 we actually leave our office to go out we're going out  
2 to the areas we identify during the days that we  
3 identify and hours that we identify to see if we can  
4 ourselves apprehend an offender. So we are testing the  
5 usefulness more than anything else of analysis reports.

6 COMMISSIONER WHITE: I understand. And the  
7 last question which maybe out of scope of your  
8 presentation, are the types of gun and/or ammunition  
9 used in a particular crime do we record that data at  
10 all to your knowledge?

11 LT. GIAQUINTO: We at Crime Analysis record  
12 in robberies it helps us identify patterns, the types  
13 of weapons that are used in robberies, in the B&E we  
14 can track that. In the analysis world I always caution  
15 people correlation is not necessarily causation.

16 But one of the correlations that we see  
17 because we track weapons in the B&Es is that where  
18 there are B&Es there are a high amount of weapon  
19 confiscations of the weapons that are being confiscated  
20 and used are the very same weapons that we see taken in  
21 the B&Es.

22 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Okay. But to your  
23 knowledge we don't track manufacturer of the handguns  
24 or ammunition that is used in the crime?

25 LT. GIAQUINTO: No, we do not.

1 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Okay. Thank you.

2 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Thank you,  
3 Commissioner. Lieutenant, just a couple questions.  
4 Can you tell us on a practical day-to-day level from  
5 the Officers on the street how or what sets up data  
6 they have available to them and how they use it? Do  
7 they get it at roll call and then they're given a  
8 report to look out for this? How does that work?

9 LT. GIAQUINTO: Well, that's a great  
10 question. The Chief has been allowing his Command  
11 Personnel to use things in the way that they best see  
12 fit. Interestingly enough we're here at Central  
13 District where that exact thing happens in the morning  
14 at the start of every shift where they bring up the  
15 crime map that we produce in the roll call room and go  
16 through incidents and see where the hot spots are and  
17 direct the Officers there.

18 Others pass out the analysis reports. So it  
19 varies from precinct to precinct. So it's not a really  
20 solid answer. But for the most part every precinct  
21 uses it in one capacity or another.

22 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: A couple other questions,  
23 please, Lieutenant. Do you see this, maybe Deputy  
24 Chief might weigh in on this, do you see this as a  
25 potential revenue generating function for other

1 entities or agencies who might need data information  
2 from Detroit crime?

3 LT. GIAQUINTO: There's not really a good way  
4 to answer. The City of Detroit we enjoy certain  
5 governmental entities because we don't operate for  
6 profit. However, that being said, through FOIA and  
7 other mechanisms there are ways that we could be  
8 reimbursed for the services that we provide. So for  
9 the man hours spent on the preparing of these reports  
10 we could in turn recover the monetary cost of that.

11 I know for certain that there are entities  
12 that do that in the private nonprofit sector. So  
13 certainly that is something that could be explored. I  
14 don't know if we can do it for profit, however, we  
15 could recover costs of the Officers' hours.

16 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: And then finally, how  
17 would we as Board members be able to get copies of some  
18 of the reports that you mentioned here, some of the  
19 tracking reports?

20 LT. GIAQUINTO: Everything that we put out is  
21 put on the Department's Internet. So I would assume  
22 that you guys have access to the Department's Internet.  
23 I would be happy to come up to your office and show you  
24 exactly where it's all stored and take a look at it.

25 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Could you do that?

1 LT. GIAQUINTO: Absolutely, absolutely.

2 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Any other questions?

3 Thank you, Lieutenant. Great job.

4 For the record, we are happy to have joined  
5 us, Vice Chair of the Board of Commissioner Jessica  
6 Taylor. At this time we will go back and officially  
7 adopt our agenda for today. I will entertain a motion  
8 to adopt today's agenda.

9 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So move.

10 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved  
12 and supported. All those in favor?

13 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

14 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?  
15 Motion carries. The minutes we're going to hold off to  
16 next week because we did not get a copy of the minutes  
17 so we will approve the minutes next week. We also have  
18 on the agenda today closed sessions for some  
19 suspensions without pay, and we'll hold that until  
20 after public comments and we'll take care of those  
21 after we hear from the public.

22 At this time I'm go to ask if there's a  
23 Secretary's Report, and we'll receive that at this time  
24 if there is a report, Mr. Secretary.

25 MR. SECRETARY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. George

1 Anthony, Secretary to the Board. This is the  
2 Secretary's Report. It says: Complaints received  
3 June 2012. The monthly common complaints for June was  
4 135 compared to the same period last year 176, that  
5 represents a 23 percent decrease. The year-to-date  
6 figure for 2012 is 674, for the same period last year  
7 it was 762, represents a 12 percent decrease.

8 At the end of June 2012 the Office of the  
9 Chief Investigator had open investigations 254, cases  
10 filed 674, and cases closed 1,121. Of the 135 cases  
11 filed in June of 2012, 43 percent involve unknown  
12 officers. The alleged known units involve leading in  
13 complaints filed in June 2012 for the 6th Precinct at  
14 ten percent, Northeastern District at ten percent, the  
15 8th Precinct at eight percent, and Central District at  
16 seven percent.

17 The 135 cases filed in June 2012 involve 240  
18 allegations where the leading areas of concern were  
19 demeanor 34 percent, procedure 24 percent, service ten  
20 percent, and force ten percent. And that completes the  
21 Secretary's Report, sir.

22 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Any questions from  
23 the members regarding the Secretary's Report? Yes,  
24 sir, Commissioner White?

25 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Mr. Secretary, if you

1 could or maybe someone from our staff, of the 135 cases  
2 and 43 percent involving unknown officers I would like  
3 to know what would be -- to me that number seems high.  
4 I'm just curious to know what attributes to that high  
5 representation of the majority of the Officers not  
6 being identifiable?

7 MR. SECRETARY: I would ask that our active  
8 Chief Investigator respond.

9 LT. LEACH: Good afternoon. Lieutenant Tim  
10 Leach. The majority of that comes from not being able  
11 to get back in touch with complainant. So when you get  
12 a brief description or a brief summary on the CCR,  
13 there's no other way, so you just have an unknown.

14 And that's when they go and look if they say  
15 plain clothes black and white officer you're looking at  
16 all the different detail, daily details and things of  
17 that nature but you still cannot identify that Officer.

18 So majority are coming in like that  
19 especially now through the MAS system so you don't  
20 really get it. So then when our Investigators try to  
21 get in touch with the complainant they don't get any  
22 other description. So that's why it's like that, sir.

23 The majority of that also comes because older  
24 cases. It should change. When most of the current  
25 cases come up we're starting to get on that. So pretty

1 much now when we get a CCR within three to four days  
2 the complainants are being contacted and we're getting  
3 better descriptions and stuff on the Officers, as well.

4 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So if the complainant is  
5 not able to be contacted to follow up with the Officers  
6 from the original complaint are classified as unknown  
7 officers?

8 LT. LEACH: If they were never identified in  
9 the CCR, correct, sir, yes, sir.

10 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I want to follow up on  
11 Commissioner White's point, but just because they're  
12 not identified does not mean that the investigation  
13 does not still go forth?

14 LT. LEACH: That is correct, sir. We have  
15 sustained unidentified officers that may be because the  
16 purposes of our office is to make sure this -- it's not  
17 to say you or him. It's for the citizens. So even  
18 with an unknown officer we still complete that case.

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: So just for our audience  
20 who's listening today, then for those individuals who  
21 are citizens who are making reports who don't know the  
22 badge number or the name of the officer our  
23 Investigators can at least know the location where the  
24 incident happened, might put them in the precinct.

25 They can go to that precinct and our

1 Investigators will look at the log sheets, what  
2 happened that day and that time, and it's possible they  
3 can get a match that way, is that true?

4 LT. LEACH: Exactly. And that's the purpose  
5 for the activity logs and daily detail, that is  
6 absolutely correct, sir.

7 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Great. Thank you.

8 LT. LEACH: You're welcome.

9 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: While you're there could  
10 you give us an update because I think it's significant  
11 as to where we are today as relates to complaints in  
12 OCI, the number of cases, the number of open cases we  
13 have, and the number of cases that's over 90 days?

14 LT. LEACH: Before I left the office we have  
15 exactly 268 active cases. We have seven cases over 90.  
16 I couldn't wait to say that one. So we're doing real  
17 good with the MAS System and stuff. It just comes  
18 right on time.

19 So the only thing we stress to the  
20 Department's Commanders is to make sure they're moving  
21 in a timely manner. But as far as everything is going  
22 as far as numbers is concerned 268. The only thing I  
23 can say now is we finally got a chance to do something  
24 new at OCI and that was actually to defend some of our  
25 investigations because most of them use to be so old



1 people wouldn't even ask.

2 Now, they get their stuff in 30, 40 days.  
3 How is this sustained or how is it not? So we just  
4 have work to work on how we communicate with citizens  
5 as far as the outcome of the investigation. So that's  
6 something we never had to do before, so that's  
7 something new for us out there.

8 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: And I think that's  
9 noteworthy to point out because just a couple years ago  
10 OCI had over 1,600 cases inhouse, and about 800 of  
11 those 1,600 that was past 90 days.

12 And certainly it's attributable to yourself  
13 and Ms. Washington and the staff over there that's been  
14 doing an outstanding job to only have seven out of 260  
15 open which let's us know that not only are you taking  
16 care of the ones that were backlogged but you're also  
17 taking care of the front door as well and it's just an  
18 outstanding job.

19 LT. LEACH: Thank you, sir.

20 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Any other questions from  
21 the Secretary's Report?

22 MR. SECRETARY: No, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: We're moving right  
24 along. There is no New Business or Old Business. I do  
25 want to back up just for a moment to the Chair's

1 Report. We just made a brief report earlier. I want  
2 to just tack on a little bit to that. Certainly we all  
3 live in the City of Detroit and we watch the news. I  
4 understand that yesterday the Mayor of the City of  
5 Detroit he basically went against what the Council  
6 voted to not approve the salary cuts for city workers  
7 including Detroit Police and Public Safety Officials,  
8 and so a ten percent pay cut went into play immediately  
9 along with some more things.

10 This Commission passed a resolution a few  
11 months ago stating that we are firmly against any  
12 further decrease in the salaries of the Detroit Police  
13 Department. We still stand very firmly behind that.

14 I want to personally thank and the  
15 Commissioners want to thank all of you who came out to  
16 City Council this week as we discussed the Public  
17 Safety Millage and how that's shaping up.

18 We do have a tentative plan that we will  
19 present to you hopefully next week to show you exactly  
20 where those Officers will be placed if the millage is  
21 passed. I want you all to know that we are resolved in  
22 our efforts to make sure that safety is number one in  
23 the City of Detroit. And we'll do everything within  
24 our power to make sure we come up with options not to  
25 take Officers off the street, but to put more Officers

1 on the street and we will be reaching out to you in the  
2 future asking for your support to help us.

3 I know next Tuesday we go before City Council  
4 again. I believe that meeting is around ten-ish. We  
5 can get back to you with the exact time as we'll go  
6 before the committee as they vote to take the millage  
7 and put it on the November Ballot so that the citizens  
8 of Detroit can choose the level of security for their  
9 own neighborhoods.

10 And certainly, again, we appreciate the  
11 support that you have shown toward the Detroit Police  
12 and toward that effort, as well. Having said that, I  
13 just want to make an announcement that our next meeting  
14 will be held Thursday, July 26th, 2012, 3:00 p.m., at  
15 the Police Headquarters, 1300 Beaubien.

16 And, again, at that meeting we will be voting  
17 on our tow rule amendments at that time so that they  
18 may go out for final publication and our final public  
19 hearing that will happen.

20 But at this time we want to open up the floor  
21 for oral communications. If you wish to address the  
22 Board of Police Commissioners you may come to the mic,  
23 the podium right here in the center, give us your name  
24 for the record and spell it for us.

25 We ask that you abide by the two-minute time

1 limit and Police Officer Cooper will be your time taker  
2 right there and he will let you know when you are  
3 approaching your limit. Thank you, very much.

4 MR. SCOTT: Thank you very much, Commissioner  
5 Warfield. First I want to say that --

6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Your name, sir?

7 MR. SCOTT: Ron Scott, Detroit Coalition  
8 Against Police Brutality. I frequently come to the  
9 meetings a lot of times just to listen, not to say  
10 anything, but sometimes there's some things that are so  
11 salient that I feel I must make a statement, and I'm  
12 glad that both you and Commissioner White raised the  
13 question in relationship to the 43 percent  
14 unidentified.

15 I want to say this prior to as preface to all  
16 of that that the Coalition has always said were not  
17 anti-police. We're anti-police brutality. We  
18 certainly are supportive of unions and we stand with  
19 them when the unions stand with the people. So as a  
20 result of that we would encourage people to support the  
21 Officers in terms of not being the fodder for  
22 corporatization of the City, and as any other city  
23 workers that they, too, can see this as an opportunity  
24 to mend some of the wounds that have existed over the  
25 years by standing with those people who are supporting

1 them.

2 So I just want to say this, that we as an  
3 organization say we're willing to do that. We have to  
4 all come together at this time in austerity in the City  
5 of Detroit to make sure that we get those things that  
6 we need. And since I have one minute I want to make  
7 this simply and very short.

8 First of all, when we talk about unknown  
9 officers we have at least two cases maybe more where  
10 the unknown officers situation has occurred primarily  
11 because there has been special units and different  
12 areas where ineffectively they might not have been  
13 assigned to that particular precinct, that district,  
14 and they might have been on special detail.

15 For instance, in Greektown or whatever, one  
16 case I'm thinking about. There's another case where a  
17 young lady who had to submit -- she came before this  
18 body, to a DUI and she didn't know it was a DUI. There  
19 was never an actual arrest recorded or at least the  
20 paperwork on her was never found.

21 She is currently going to be in court in  
22 about two weeks. We retained counsel for her and we'd  
23 be willing to share any of the cases where, in effect,  
24 the unknown officers have existed.

25 We think that it's more of a challenge than

1 just the problem that exists that say, for instance, it  
2 might be mentioned in CCR that in some cases there's an  
3 intentional desire not to be known under certain  
4 circumstances. We also had a situation like that in  
5 the fireworks last year. These are cases that we have  
6 documented.

7 Finally in terms of and I just asked you to  
8 indulge this because I know I'm out of time because I  
9 do have some proposals I do want to present to you.  
10 The situation in terms of the problems that exists. I  
11 think it's not so much even just as persons who may not  
12 be mentioned. We need to find out whether or not these  
13 individuals are supervisory personnel or  
14 non-supervisory personnel because the culture is  
15 conveyed by supervisors.

16 Once we find out who they are we need to find  
17 out who is there and how that culture is being  
18 conveyed. Secondly, I'd like to know in terms of the  
19 new configuration of the police the OCI how many  
20 formally sworn or non-sworn personnel that are there as  
21 opposed to independent or individuals who have not been  
22 sworn. I think that's important. The accountability  
23 of the complaint process, the accessibility of the  
24 complaint process, are individuals being encouraged to  
25 do it or are they being discouraged?

1           For instance, if they come and ask to do it  
2 is there a process by which they're being encouraged or  
3 discouraged? I think that in and of itself where  
4 they're discouraged which we've had complaints like  
5 that where they're not allowed to make complaints or in  
6 fact, discouraged. I won't even go into the details of  
7 the discouraged. I've shared those with you also.

8           And finally, last week I mentioned to you  
9 about the number of different police agencies that are  
10 in the Detroit area. I think there needs to be larger  
11 meetings specifically dealing by the process by which  
12 MOUs are being initiated by which independent  
13 organizations like a crime commission.

14           I just did research on where two formerly  
15 high ranking law enforcement officials have unlimited  
16 funds for the next five years and are engaged in  
17 activities which, in effect, did not have the oversight  
18 of the body. I'm concerned about that. Especially  
19 when it's the former FBI Chief and Homeland Security  
20 Chief.

21           And finally, I'd just like to say once again  
22 we stand with those individuals who have voluntarily  
23 decided to be public servants of the City and as long  
24 as you work on behalf of the citizens we stand with you  
25 and are willing to support you; have a just and fair

1 and honorable amount of money and benefits so that you  
2 can take care of your family and help take care of the  
3 community. Thank you.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Scott.  
5 Just a couple things. I know our Attorney Celia Banks  
6 Washington can get you the numbers as it relates to the  
7 OCI personnel breakdown and that probably will change  
8 again in the next 30 or 45 days. She'll get  
9 information on that immediately because we do have the  
10 break-down available.

11 Also as it relates to the other policing  
12 agencies. Our staff are currently working on that  
13 information we mentioned last week we pulled together.  
14 We can actually look at that because it has major  
15 implications. And for the citizen who may not  
16 understand it if a state police officer or county  
17 sheriff or someone else has an interaction with a  
18 citizen that is less than desirable the question then  
19 becomes where do they go to complain? Where do they go  
20 to seek their rights?

21 We know within the Detroit City Charter this  
22 Board has been established in an effort to make sure  
23 those rights are protected. So certainly that is of  
24 great concern to ours and of our staff. We will be  
25 working to put that type of meeting together so we can



1 address that issue because we do believe that's  
2 something that could get out of hand very quickly, and  
3 very fast.

4 As relates to the complaint process whether  
5 to encourage or discourage. We would like to say that  
6 most citizens are encourage to make complaints.

7 However, we do know of instances where some may have  
8 been discouraged. So we can investigate those as well.

9 One of the things I found out this week as we  
10 were sitting in case reviews with the Federal Monitors  
11 that our Investigators actually also investigate extra  
12 complaints. So not only the initial complaint that  
13 happens. So if during the course of any interviewing a  
14 particular citizen if more complaints come out they  
15 have to open more cases as a result of that.

16 So certainly our staff without question  
17 encourages citizens to make complaints. As you know we  
18 posted them in all the libraries how to do it, at the  
19 various stations as well. But of course there's always  
20 room for improvement. So if you know of instances we  
21 need to tighten up some screws in that equation let us  
22 know and we'll certainly do that.

23 MR. SCOTT: If you could indulge me for about  
24 ten seconds I'd like to offer the Commission the  
25 opportunity to access our radio program as you have

1 been on to let people know about the complaint process  
2 and to encourage anyone so that we can specify how it  
3 can be done as an assist to this process.

4 And finally I would suggest and I would ask  
5 if we do a randomized sampling of how citizens have  
6 perceived that things have been handled for them so  
7 that at least you can get some assessment, some  
8 independent assessment of what's happening. I'd be  
9 willing to actually suggest certain organizations who  
10 might assist in that. For instance, the Center for  
11 Peace and Conflict Studies, Wayne State University who  
12 we've been working with on these matters so that we can  
13 assess it on a randomized basis how citizens see trust  
14 having been established or not in certain  
15 circumstances.

16 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you. We'll look  
17 into that.

18 MR. SCOTT: Thank you, sir.

19 MS. PANNELL: Good afternoon. Sharon  
20 Pannell. I just got good news. Second Precinct will  
21 be opening August 3rd at 1:00. They want everybody out  
22 there. They've got games, food, bounces for the kids.  
23 So if you know anybody around in the area, please come  
24 out.

25 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Ms. Pannell, did you get

1 your question answered as it relates to or has someone  
2 been in contact with you as it relates to the service?

3 MS. PANNELL? Yes, I did. Yes, they did.

4 Thank you very much.

5 MR. WELLBORN: Good afternoon to the Board.

6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Good afternoon.

7 MR. WELLBORN: My name is Bill Wellborn. I'm  
8 president of Citywide Police Community. I got news  
9 through the grapevine and think everybody knows that  
10 All Stars on Eight Mile and Hubble that was recently  
11 closed up he has bought Hot Tamale from what I found  
12 out. Hot Tamale is on Warren and Eight Mile. He wants  
13 to move in there and start a new business.

14 Now this is my area and I'm not going to let  
15 him move in there if I have to fight him myself.  
16 That's the way I feel about it. But he's bought the  
17 car wash and everything there. He wants to tear all  
18 that down and make a parking lot out of it and extend  
19 his building.

20 Now, can he move his liquor license which I  
21 guess he owns from there from the old place to the new  
22 place, Hot Tamale to a new club?

23 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Do you have the  
24 answer to that? Maybe City Council?

25 D.C. LEE: Deputy Chief Lee. Go through City

1 Council. They also have to go through Liquor Licensing  
2 in order to move or transfer licenses, so it would be  
3 vetted them through as well as the Liquor Commission.  
4 So if they'll allow it, they'll allow it.

5 MR. WELLBORN: Do we have any say so for him  
6 to move there?

7 D.C. LEE: I believe there's a petition  
8 process that they do. It'll come through and they  
9 notify everybody and then you have to respond.

10 MR. WELLBORN: He has to go through the  
11 zoning board, too? Okay. I just want to know for sure  
12 because this place has been a pain in the side for a  
13 long time. Thank you.

14 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Wellborn.

15 MS. LACY: Good afternoon. My name is Mary  
16 Lacy. First of all, I'd like to say I had a question  
17 last week when I was here and Ms. Washington answered  
18 it immediately. Now, the new Chief Investigator is  
19 this family and friends? Who's the new chief? I  
20 believe the last one I remember I think he was related  
21 to Shears. So who's the new Chief Investigator? And I  
22 don't want to waste my two minutes waiting for an  
23 answer.

24 And then I also I was supposed to talk to  
25 Deputy Chief Herbert I believe his name was and we had

1 set up a meeting where he was going to send a  
2 Lieutenant out to the tenant's meeting where a person  
3 had passed away through a fault that existed, but we  
4 was hoping he could bring some experience from  
5 police-wise. However, he never showed up. So that was  
6 a waste of time. And then finally I'd like to find out  
7 what happened to the hearing on the federal monitor  
8 before Judge Cook, because I called down there and they  
9 said the public wasn't invited. Can we find out  
10 something happening on that?

11 And finally I would like to say is I'm hoping  
12 can anyone take this and pass it down and bring it  
13 back? I'm hoping that the Board of Commissioners  
14 realize that many people in the audience have other  
15 activities. I mean, we just don't sit around and use  
16 the video or looking at TV. You can turn it over. I  
17 wanted each one of you to see it. That we do have  
18 other things. We do have commitments.

19 So that's what I was referring to when I made  
20 the appointment with the Deputy Chief and the Deputy  
21 Chief supposed to had called the Lieutenant and the  
22 Lieutenant never showed to the meeting of the tenants.  
23 So like I said, my main objective of those cards is  
24 just to show we have other commitments. We not just  
25 down here want to bug you or mention things.

1 Can I have someone answer to the questions I  
2 ask?

3 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Yes, ma'am, and  
4 again, Ms. Lacy, it's always good to see you.

5 As relates to the Chief Investigator, her  
6 name is Ms. Drake and she will be introduced to the  
7 audience. She's winding down her previous position.  
8 And so when she comes on board officially we'll  
9 certainly have her on Thursday and introduce her to the  
10 entire community.

11 MS. LACY: Is there a way we can have her  
12 academic achievement and performance before being  
13 selected?

14 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: She's already selected,  
15 ma'am.

16 MS. LACY: I know she's already selected,  
17 but does the public have a right to know her  
18 background?

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: We'll introduce her when  
20 she comes and you'll have all that. You'll have as  
21 much as we can get that's on her resumé, absolutely,  
22 that's not a problem. But she comes very experienced.  
23 The other information that you asked about, Deputy  
24 Chief Lee, will address your issue on that, him or her  
25 not showing up.

1 MS. LACEY: Okay. And about the monitor?

2 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: About the monitor, yes,  
3 ma'am, I'll get to that.

4 D.C. LEE: I didn't hear. I heard mention  
5 that the Deputy Chief was supposed to have a  
6 Lieutenant. I don't know where they were supposed to  
7 go.

8 MS. LACY: They were supposed to come to our  
9 tenants meeting because we had a situation where a  
10 tenant passed away and we was trying to make sure that  
11 situation didn't happen again, so we wanted some  
12 professional, somebody from the Police Department  
13 that's professional.

14 D.C. TURNER: I'll speak to you after the  
15 meeting.

16 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Deputy Chief Melvin  
17 Turner will get with you.

18 MS. LACY: I think we met before.

19 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Yes, ma'am. And as  
20 it relates to the Federal Monitors they are here this  
21 week. There was a closed door session held in Judge  
22 Cook's chambers today. Their findings as relates to  
23 the progress of the consent decree will be unveiled, I  
24 believe tomorrow is their exit meeting.

25 We had a Command Accountability Meeting on

1 Tuesday of this week at Wayne County that we announced  
2 at our last meeting and invited everyone to come. We  
3 had an open forum for citizens to ask questions of  
4 everyone who was at the table which also was the Mayor,  
5 Chief of Police, Deputy Mayor, and the Federal  
6 Monitors, as well. But they will give their closing  
7 analysis as relates to where we are in the progress  
8 tomorrow. So we don't know what their final analysis  
9 is is where we are right now.

10 MS. LACY: Okay. Can I have my cards back?

11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: You want them back?

12 MS. LACY: Definitely.

13 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Yes, ma'am. Thank you.

14 MS. HINES: My name is Sandra Hines. I'm a  
15 member of the Detroit Coalition Against Police Brutality.  
16 I just want to know pertaining to what Ms. Lacey said  
17 in terms of the monitors meeting, closed meeting. Now  
18 we in the throws right now in the City of Detroit about  
19 the issue of the close meeting being unlawful.

20 And so how would the community find out about  
21 the meeting that you just said because they're not  
22 supposed to meet without the community. It's against  
23 the law. We have the Open Meetings Act in place. And  
24 so we need to know what transpired and what came out of  
25 that meeting and we need to know any other meetings



1 that they having because I know that they're not  
2 supposed to do that.

3 We right now we in the midst of a city where  
4 they're just disregarding the citizens rights.  
5 Democracy doesn't mean anything anymore. They've taken  
6 almost everything they can away from the citizens.  
7 Here again we see within the Police Department as it  
8 relates to the monitor they got closed meetings.

9 Who is the person that's on the Police  
10 Department that deals with that kind of situation?  
11 Because we need to know. You can't have closed  
12 meetings. Or tell me if I'm wrong?

13 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Ms. Hines, we'll have  
14 Ms. Washington come and follow me up. But that's  
15 actually Judge Cook's decision.

16 MS. HINES: Well, Judge Cook can be unlawful,  
17 too.

18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I just want to answer  
19 your question. That's not a decision that the  
20 Department makes. When he requests to meet with us  
21 it's either in his chambers or it's in his courtroom.

22 MS. HINES: Let me ask this question.

23 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Now, when the monitors do  
24 come they do make themselves available and again theirs  
25 is an open forum. We have the Chief of Police, you

1 have the Deputy Mayor, you have the Federal Monitors,  
2 you have all of the Commands, the entire Detroit Police  
3 Department there, you have our office there, Office of  
4 the Chief Investigation there. They give out a report  
5 with everything that's happening and what the progress  
6 is from a department standpoint without the final  
7 analysis from the monitors which happened Tuesday which  
8 we did announce and it was an open public meeting, and  
9 notices went out for that.

10 Now Ms. Washington can give you a little bit  
11 more precise answer than what I did as relates to Judge  
12 Cook's authority to call, you know, folks together as  
13 he does. I'm not privy to that and maybe  
14 Ms. Washington who's been involved a little bit longer  
15 than I have is.

16 MS. HINES: I would like her answer.

17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I'll let her answer your  
18 next question.

19 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Celia Washington,  
20 Attorney to the Board of Police Commissioners. Two  
21 things. What happened this morning wasn't a closed  
22 session. It was a settlement conference and the  
23 statutes in Michigan support that settlement  
24 conferences are not subject to the Open Meetings Act.

25 Judges have settlement conferences all the

1 time in their chambers. And even though this is a very  
2 vast topic it's still subjective to Court Rules.

3 The quarterly report that comes out of these  
4 visits is made available on the website and we'll make  
5 sure the public is notified and that's put on the  
6 website.

7 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: So I apologize when I  
8 said the wrong verbiage. It should not have been  
9 closed. It should have been settlement conference.  
10 But from your standpoint I'm sure it's the same.

11 MS. HINES: Yeah. Let me ask this question.  
12 We pay the monitor, right, the public? And so we're  
13 paying them and we can't hear the information that they  
14 speak. When they come together they have closed  
15 sessions and we're paying these people's paycheck, that  
16 just don't seem right. And I know you don't have  
17 anything to do with that, can't do anything about it.

18 But these judges that are ruling on  
19 unlawfully right now here in the City of Detroit we all  
20 should be concerned about it. We see that they  
21 practically have give Detroit away, the City Council.  
22 And they brought you guys in this last couple of weeks.  
23 Chief Godbee was at the meetings with Mayor Bing,  
24 didn't look real good because the people is not  
25 satisfied with the decisions Mayor Bing is making.

1           And to have him show up at these meetings and  
2 he don't show up at these meetings give me cause, you  
3 know, causes me to be a little upset. Because to me he  
4 should be here to answer the questions from the public,  
5 not paraded up with the Mayor to answer questions that  
6 don't really mean anything.

7           There's a lot of double talk going on back at  
8 the community and nothing is really solved. And then  
9 we see him roll out every day that he's given inch by  
10 inch away of Detroit. Every time you look at him now  
11 he's just like bargaining. He just did the CTE the  
12 cuts to all the different departments that he just let  
13 go through when City Council vote for him not to do  
14 that.

15           So I mean, it's at the point now I don't know  
16 what's going on. Whether we have any rights at all.  
17 If this continues to happen God forbid what the Police  
18 Department will start doing if they follow suit on what  
19 the City is doing. Because what they're doing to me is  
20 one unlawful thing after another.

21           And the people in this room should be fired  
22 up. The whole City should be fired up about what's  
23 going on right now in the City of Detroit. We're going  
24 to be sorry if we don't put some major force and push  
25 back all of these cuts on the people. We already in

1 dire straights.

2 Most people nowadays are under tremendous  
3 pressure to pay whatever. And they cutting, cutting,  
4 cutting. But yet there's still large sums of money is  
5 going here, there, and everywhere. And it's our money.  
6 We're always left out of any decision when it comes  
7 down to making any real decision for the people. But  
8 we still paying, paying, paying, through the nose our  
9 money.

10 So I'm just a little frustrated about how all  
11 this stuff is going on these back room deals, closed  
12 door meetings where they not even supposed to be doing  
13 it and I know they not supposed to have no closed  
14 meeting. We have the Open Meetings Act and it is not  
15 being honored.

16 And so I'm saying whatever information that  
17 you get pertaining to what they going to do in terms of  
18 the Police Department the first people that need to get  
19 it is the people that's really going to be affected and  
20 that's us out in neighborhoods who are going to have to  
21 bear the brunt of anything of these decisions that  
22 people are making against us, for us, or whatever.

23 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Thank you, Ms. Hines,  
24 and we certainly will make sure as soon as we see the  
25 report from the Monitors that we'll post it and get it

1 to you. Thank you, ma'am.

2 MR. MOORE: To the Board, our Chief,  
3 Detroit's Family, my name is Edward Moore. I'm the  
4 liaison of Honorable Kwame Kenyatta our Detroit City  
5 Councilman bringing warm greetings from his office.

6 The Councilman's position is he's going to  
7 stand with the Unions and City Council.

8 Now, what the cuts of the Departments and  
9 DPOA they have a nine member board and they have that  
10 financial person to make that decision with the Mayor.  
11 They have trumped the unions and they have trumped our  
12 charter.

13 So that's the position of the Councilman.  
14 He's standing with the Union and City Council. What  
15 the City Council recommended never hit the table. The  
16 Mayor didn't look at it. Peace.

17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Moore.  
18 Just on that point I do want to say I did have an  
19 opportunity to go to the midnight roll call of  
20 Northeastern District just to check in with our men and  
21 women in blue, midnight this morning, and the police  
22 said they showed up professionally.

23 I would be disingenuous to say that they were  
24 happy, but in spite of the situation that they're going  
25 through they're still on the streets and they're still

1 doing a good job. So like you, Mr. Moore, we're  
2 standing with them and were supporting them 100 percent  
3 all the way.

4 MR. MOORE: Thank you.

5 MR. BRICE: Good evening, my name is Marcel  
6 Brice, for the record. I just want to point out a  
7 couple things. A couple days ago I was out campaigning  
8 Boston Edison knocking on doors going door to door. My  
9 assistant Joy just walked in the room with the t-shirt  
10 on, noticed somebody breaking into a home. They called  
11 the police. Nobody showed up.

12 It took me calling the 10th Precinct to let  
13 them know who I was and that what I had witnessed. And  
14 the first thing the lady said when she picked up the  
15 phone was, let me transfer you to dispatch. I said,  
16 don't transfer me to dispatch. The police will not be  
17 able to show up. I said, get me some officers, whoever  
18 was in that building right now to come out here.

19 She said, let me get my Lieutenant. She came  
20 back to the phone a couple minutes and said my  
21 Lieutenant is on the way. Within six minutes I had  
22 four police cars.

23 Saturday night I'm coming back from  
24 campaigning coming from Downtown, me and Joy again,  
25 witnessed a fight break out at the train station, big

1 fight. Once we rolled past it we heard gunshots.  
2 Before I started looking for a police car right away in  
3 Downtown Detroit on Saturday night around 9:00 p.m., it  
4 took me to get to the Police Station on Beaubien before  
5 I would could get one cop. I said all that to say  
6 this, that the bottom line is that our streets aren't  
7 safe and the reason why is because we don't have enough  
8 Police Officers out.

9 I do not support any type of initiative that  
10 is taking money away or reducing funds to this  
11 Department. But at the same time I don't think we are  
12 using our Police Officers efficiently.

13 In 2010 September, the City of Detroit hired  
14 the McKenzie Foundation to do an audit on the city  
15 department, and my question is coming, and what the  
16 McKenzie Foundation found out was at that time we have  
17 3,000 Officers on the payroll. One thousand of those  
18 Officers, a third of the Police Department, was doing  
19 work that wasn't considered to be related to policing.

20 We had drivers, clerks, vehicle maintenance  
21 officers. All these sworn Officers. Another thing the  
22 McKenzie Foundation found out was that we have too many  
23 specialized units that don't answer 911 calls.  
24 Traffic, Gang Squad, RST, Tact Mobile.

25 When will we begin to redevelop this



1 Department and to take some of these Officers and begin  
2 to put them back onto patrol? We found out through  
3 research that the number one way to reduce crime is by  
4 answering and responding to 911 calls.

5 So that's basically my question. I'm out  
6 here everyday eight, nine hours a day in this  
7 community. I see grass that's this high. That has  
8 nothing to do with you all. But the City is not safe.  
9 Residents are upset. And we are going to have to  
10 change.

11 We cannot continue to be operating as we have  
12 been for the past 25 or 30 years. And I would like to  
13 see this Body step up to the plate and come up with  
14 some real solutions of getting more cops. I know we  
15 don't have the funds to hire more Police Officers.

16 And once I get to Lansing I'm going to find  
17 some funding. But for today, can we say that we are a  
18 hundred percent using our men and women in the blue in  
19 the most effective way we can? And if not, we need to  
20 change that.

21 And we need to get some of the clerks and  
22 some of these drivers, and some of these vehicle  
23 maintenance officers, and some of these traffic units  
24 back to running and answer 911 calls. Thank you.

25 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Brice.

1 I want to address a few of those and Deputy Chief may  
2 want to chime in, too. Certainly the McKenzie Report  
3 is not something that's new to the Department. As a  
4 matter of fact, the Department cooperated fully  
5 100 percent with the McKenzie Report in an effort that  
6 we may become more efficient in our operations and  
7 there were some findings. I'm pleased to say that the  
8 number of those finding there's been significant  
9 progress on.

10 A number of Officers have been moved from  
11 inside to out on the street. The issue is from the  
12 budget standpoint. And you know this, we don't have  
13 money to hire new Police Officers.

14 Even with the massive number of Officers who  
15 are currently retiring right now, the current budget  
16 that was passed by the Detroit City Council and the  
17 Mayor said that almost 500 of those positions will not  
18 be filled.

19 So what is this Body doing? This Body  
20 adopted a resolution a few months ago that talked about  
21 we do not support anymore further cuts to the Detroit  
22 Police Department. This Body also adopted a resolution  
23 saying that we support the efforts to put before the  
24 voters a safety millage. We want to put the question  
25 to the voters to raise a public safety millage for

1 Fire, Police and EMS in an effort that we may put up  
2 500 more Police Officers on the street as well as put  
3 more money towards Fire Fighters and EMS to strengthen  
4 public safety.

5 Public Safety in the City of Detroit and we  
6 know this as well as you know is number one. I will  
7 say this, our men and women in blue work their tails  
8 off. We are literally, literally at a skeleton crew,  
9 and I'm being very generous in saying that.

10 And so as relates to some of the things that  
11 has happened recently I believe that the Chief of  
12 Police is doing the very best he can with what he has  
13 to work with, and moving as many folk around as he  
14 possibly can.

15 We're doing that by partnering with them and  
16 coming up with new solutions. Here's what we need.  
17 Here's what the City of Detroit needs. The City of  
18 Detroit needs individuals and citizens to step up to  
19 the plate and say this is what we want to do. And  
20 that's what this Board has done is to say this is what  
21 we believe will get more Officers on the street.

22 And we endorse and the Department endorses  
23 the changes that the McKenzie Report had recommended.  
24 As a matter of fact, the Chief brought in an  
25 organizational black belt guy, Sig Sigma guy, doesn't

1 mean he does karate, but the organizational handles --  
2 he's a very highly talented professional organizational  
3 management, and the Department has adopted a number of  
4 his suggestions in an effort to make us more efficient.

5 And so we're doing that. We have equipment  
6 issues that we're addressing. We have a number of  
7 things that we're doing. But at the end of the day  
8 we're moving that way. And so I know the Officers in  
9 this room, the Officers that work day in and day out,  
10 they appreciate all of the community support they can  
11 get. So keep doing it.

12 And, you know, when opportunities come to  
13 support our Department be there. We'll be hopefully  
14 leading that charge to do that. Absolutely.

15 Are there anymore comments?

16 MR. MELVILLE: Good afternoon, Board. Joseph  
17 Melville, Melville's Towing, also Westside Impound. I  
18 have a question and concern. My first question's going  
19 to be I approached the Board about 60 days ago about  
20 moving a authorized police towing company in one of my  
21 yards.

22 I know there was some hearings and laws and  
23 stuff pertaining to that and I was wondering what the  
24 resolution to that was so I can proceed. My second  
25 question was a concern. I was watching the news and

1 also read the papers on another tower again is admitted  
2 to the pay to play in the City of Detroit.

3 And this is the second tower now who has come  
4 forward and says, oh, I'm a victim. What is the Board  
5 of Police Commissioners and the City of Detroit Police  
6 Department going to do about this to stop it?  
7 Discipline them or remove them?

8 Because if you don't do nothing then you set  
9 the standards to the other twenty, thirty, forty tow  
10 companies saying it's our right to pay off the Detroit  
11 Police Department or City Council or the Mayor, so for,  
12 so forth, when all they have to do is claim victim and  
13 nothing happens to them. They still pay. They still  
14 prosper. They still gain over the other thirty tow  
15 companies.

16 Why hasn't nothing been done yet? That's my  
17 concern.

18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Those are your two  
19 questions?

20 MR. MELVILLE: Those are my two questions.

21 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: As relates to the moving  
22 of the tow company off your lot to somewhere else,  
23 we're still waiting to hear legally to move forward  
24 with that. So when we get the information from the  
25 Courts we'll move forward on that particular issue, but

1 until that time comes we're at the mercy of the Courts  
2 on that.

3 MR. MELVILLE: I understand.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: As relates to the article  
5 that you're referencing or two articles that you're  
6 referencing we cannot, you know, have anything done  
7 punitively against someone who has not broken the law.

8 Now, wait a minute. If there was something  
9 that said someone was indicted for breaking the law and  
10 they are a vendor of ours then of course we have the  
11 obligation to do that very expeditiously to do that.  
12 But until that time happens, until someone comes to us  
13 and tell us that and shows us that then we cannot take  
14 individuals with allegations and then say, you know  
15 what, you're kicked off because we think you may have  
16 done something wrong.

17 So until that's vetted out there is nothing  
18 this Board could do, nor would you want us to do.  
19 Because if that's the case then we would have our nose  
20 all up in your business and we don't want to do that  
21 and you don't want us doing that.

22 MR. MELVILLE: I understand what you're  
23 saying. It's my understanding, my beliefs are now  
24 they're going to be potential witnesses and they're not  
25 going to be charged.

1 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Those are your beliefs.

2 MR. MELVILLE: My beliefs.

3 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: So until again that's  
4 vetted out there's nothing we can do about it.

5 MR. MELVILLE: Thank you, sir.

6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, sir. Anything  
7 else? At this time I'm going to turn to our Secretary  
8 and we're going to close the oral communications  
9 section of our meetings and we're going to move toward  
10 the personnel matters that we need to address in closed  
11 session according to the Open Meetings Act.

12 MR. SECRETARY: Mr. Chair, George Anthony  
13 Secretary to the Board, for the record. You have  
14 before you two requests for closed sessions, so as a  
15 public body your meetings are subject to the Open  
16 Meetings Act.

17 The Open Meetings Act defines a meeting and  
18 convening of a public body in which a quorum is present  
19 for the purpose of deliberating towards or rendering a  
20 decision on a public policy, MCL 15.262B. The Open  
21 Meetings Act, however, does allow a public body to call  
22 a closed session one limited to the public body and  
23 it's invitees for specific purposes.

24 Only deliberations may be conducted in closed  
25 session. All decisions must be made at a meeting open

1 to the public. While in the closed session the Board  
2 makes no decisions. That must be done on the record.

3 On Thursday, July 19th, 2012 you will be  
4 presented with a suspension without pay recommendation  
5 for Police Officer Bradford Bullock, Badge 1043, and  
6 Police Officer Raphael Washington, Badge 4181. Through  
7 their representative DPOA Attorney John J. Goldpaugh,  
8 Officer Bullock and Washington have requested closed  
9 sessions for the purpose of contesting this suspension  
10 without pay recommendations.

11 The closed sessions will be called pursuant  
12 to MCL 15.268A of the Open Meetings Act which states in  
13 part, the public body may meet in a closed session to  
14 consider the suspension of or hear charges brought  
15 against an employee. A simple majority vote or quorum  
16 of three is required to close a session for this  
17 purpose.

18 At this point a motion is in order to move  
19 into closed session.

20 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Members, what is your  
21 pleasure?

22 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Mr. Chair, I move that  
23 we move into closed session for the purposes of  
24 handling personnel matters.

25 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.



1           CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved  
2 and supported. Any discussion? Hearing and seeing  
3 none, all those in favor of going into closed session  
4 for the purpose of handling the personnel matters  
5 before us please say aye.

6           COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

7           CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed have  
8 the same right and privilege. Motion carries. This  
9 will not end our meeting. We'll just move into closed  
10 session. Thank you.

11           As we move into closed session -- there is a  
12 celebrity baseball game this Sunday, July 22nd for  
13 Cystic Fibrosis that will feature members from the  
14 Detroit Police Department as well as the media. It's  
15 going to take place at Liberty Park in Sterling Heights  
16 from 11:00 a.m. 3:00 p.m. If you want more information  
17 there's a flier and you can get more information.

18                           (An off-the-record  
19                           discussion was held.)

20           CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Sir, can you bring us  
21 back into session, please?

22           MR. SECRETARY: Mr. Chair, George Anthony,  
23 Secretary to the Board, for the record. A motion is in  
24 order to come from closed session to public meeting.

25           COMMISSIONER WHITE: Mr. Chair, I move that

1 we return from closed session from the handling of  
2 personnel matters back to an open session.

3 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved  
5 and supported. Any discussion? Hearing and seeing  
6 none. All those in favor?

7 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

8 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?  
9 Motion passes. Mr. Secretary?

10 MR. SECRETARY: Mr. Chair, you've heard in  
11 closed session the recommendation of the Chief of the  
12 suspension without pay for Police Officer Bradford  
13 Bullock, Badge 1043 assigned to Central Events. Unless  
14 contravened by this Board the suspension without pay  
15 will stand.

16 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Contravened.

17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Contravened.

18 MR. SECRETARY: The second. You've heard the  
19 suspension without pay recommendation of the Chief in  
20 the matter of Police Officer Raphael Washington,  
21 Badge 4181 assigned to the 8th Precinct, and unless  
22 contravened by this Board the suspension without pay  
23 recommendation will stand.

24 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Contravened.

25 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Contravened.

1 MR. SECRETARY: Thank you. That concluded  
2 the matters, sir.

3 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: That concludes the  
4 business that was held in closed session. I will now  
5 move for a motion to adjourn the meeting.

6 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So moved.

7 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

8 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved  
9 and supported that we adjourn today's Police Commission  
10 meeting. All those in favor?

11 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

12 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Opposed? Motion carries.  
13 Thank you.

14 (The hearing concluded at 5:32 p.m.)  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF MICHIGAN )  
 ) SS  
COUNTY OF WAYNE )

I, Elizabeth Koller, hereby certify that I reported stenographically the foregoing proceedings at the time and place hereinbefore set forth; that thereafter the same was reduced to computer transcription under my supervision; and that this is a full, true, complete and correct transcription of said proceedings.



*Elizabeth Koller*

Elizabeth Koller, CSR 7042,  
Notary Public,  
Wayne County, Michigan

My Commission expires: June 1, 2012

**A**

**abide** 27:25  
**ability** 11:23  
**able** 10:11 19:17  
 22:10 23:5  
 47:17  
**absconder** 14:2  
**absences** 6:22  
**absolutely** 20:1  
 20:1 24:6  
 38:21 52:14  
**academic** 38:12  
**access** 19:22  
 33:25  
**accessibility**  
 30:23  
**accomplished**  
 10:7  
**accomplishment**  
 10:8  
**accountability**  
 9:24 30:22  
 39:25  
**achievement**  
 38:12  
**Act** 40:23 42:24  
 45:14 55:11,16  
 55:17,21 56:12  
**action** 11:6 14:4  
**active** 22:7  
 24:15  
**activities** 31:17  
 37:15  
**activity** 24:5  
**actual** 29:19  
**address** 8:11  
 27:21 33:1  
 38:24 50:1  
 55:10  
**addressing** 52:6  
**adjourn** 59:5,9  
**adjustments** 8:1  
 10:10  
**admitted** 53:1  
**adopt** 20:7,8  
**adopted** 50:20,22  
 52:3  
**adoption** 5:16  
**afternoon** 3:4  
 5:25 6:1 22:9  
 34:19 35:5,6

36:15 52:16  
**agencies** 6:11,13  
 19:1 31:9  
 32:12  
**agenda** 4:18,19  
 20:7,8,18  
**ago** 10:15 25:9  
 26:11 47:7  
 50:20 52:19  
**alert** 16:9  
**alerts** 7:6,8  
 15:22  
**allegations**  
 21:18 54:14  
**alleged** 21:12  
**allow** 6:22 8:11  
 36:4,4 55:21  
**allowed** 31:5  
**allowing** 18:10  
**allows** 11:13  
**Amen** 4:13,14  
**amendments** 27:17  
**ammunition** 17:8  
 17:24  
**amount** 17:18  
 32:1  
**analysis** 5:23  
 6:3,6,14,21  
 8:17 9:12  
 10:14,15 11:25  
 12:23 13:3,3  
 13:10,11 14:9  
 15:17 16:22,25  
 17:5,11,14  
 18:18 40:7,8  
 42:7  
**analytical** 7:4  
**analyze** 10:3  
**Analyzing** 10:2  
**Android** 16:19  
**and/or** 17:8  
**Angel's** 14:12  
**announce** 42:8  
**announced** 40:1  
**announcement**  
 27:13  
**answer** 18:20  
 19:4 35:24  
 36:23 38:1  
 41:18 42:11,16  
 42:17 44:4,5  
 48:23 49:24

**answered** 35:1  
 36:17  
**answering** 49:4  
**Anthony** 2:17  
 3:12,16 21:1  
 55:12 57:22  
**anti-police**  
 28:17,17  
**anybody** 34:23  
**anymore** 41:5  
 50:21 52:15  
**API** 15:13  
**apologize** 43:7  
**App** 16:19,19  
**appear** 11:4  
**APPEARANCES** 2:1  
**Appearing** 2:8  
**application**  
 16:14  
**applications**  
 14:14,18  
**appointment**  
 37:20  
**appreciate** 27:10  
 52:10  
**apprehend** 17:4  
**approach** 6:24  
 13:18  
**approached** 52:19  
**approaching**  
 13:19,19 28:3  
**approve** 20:17  
 26:6  
**approximately**  
 7:16  
**area** 7:8 11:1  
 12:8,24,25  
 13:25 14:3  
 31:10 34:23  
 35:14  
**areas** 10:24  
 11:14 12:1  
 17:2 21:18  
 29:12  
**arrest** 7:19 8:14  
 11:2 29:19  
**arrests** 8:14  
**article** 54:4  
**articles** 54:5  
**asked** 30:7 38:23  
**asking** 27:2  
**assault** 16:5

**assaults** 11:18  
 11:19  
**assess** 10:4  
 34:13  
**Assessing** 10:2  
**assessment** 34:7  
 34:8  
**asset** 6:14  
**assigned** 29:13  
 58:13,21  
**assist** 11:3 12:3  
 12:9 34:3,10  
**assistant** 9:20  
 47:9  
**assume** 19:21  
**ATF** 15:6  
**Attorney** 2:3  
 3:18 32:5  
 42:19,20 56:7  
**attributable**  
 25:12  
**attributes** 22:4  
**audience** 4:14  
 6:1 23:19  
 37:14 38:7  
**audit** 8:12 48:14  
**auditors** 8:12  
**audits** 8:14  
**August** 5:12  
 34:21  
**austerity** 29:4  
**authority** 42:12  
**authorized** 52:20  
**auto** 6:17 11:19  
**availability** 7:6  
**available** 6:25  
 8:13 16:20  
 18:6 32:10  
 41:24 43:4  
**Avenue** 1:16  
**aware** 8:9  
**aye** 20:13 57:5,6  
 58:7 59:11  
**a.m.** 57:16

**B**

**back** 3:12 4:20  
 14:9 20:6  
 22:11 25:25  
 27:5 37:13  
 40:10,11 44:7  
 44:25 45:11

47:20,23 49:2  
49:24 57:21  
58:2  
**background** 7:11  
38:18  
**backlogged** 25:16  
**badge** 23:22 56:5  
56:6 58:13,21  
**Ballot** 27:7  
**Banks** 2:2 3:18  
32:5  
**bargaining** 44:11  
**baseball** 57:12  
**based** 7:8,14,17  
9:9 11:14 13:3  
13:5,9 15:22  
16:3  
**basically** 9:13  
15:25 26:5  
49:5  
**basis** 34:13  
**bear** 45:21  
**Beaubien** 2:5  
27:15 48:4  
**behalf** 2:8 31:24  
**beliefs** 54:23  
55:1,2  
**believe** 5:7 27:4  
33:1 36:7,20  
36:25 39:24  
51:11,21  
**belt** 51:25  
**benefit** 14:21  
**benefits** 32:1  
**Benjamin** 2:18  
3:10  
**best** 9:11 18:11  
51:12  
**Beth** 3:23,24  
**better** 4:8 6:10  
8:21 23:3  
**beyond** 12:11  
**big** 8:16 14:23  
47:25  
**biggest** 14:20  
**Bill** 35:7  
**Bing** 43:23,25  
**bit** 7:13 26:2  
42:10,14  
**black** 22:15  
51:25  
**bless** 4:6

**block** 15:9  
**blue** 46:21 49:18  
51:7  
**board** 1:2 2:3,4  
2:8 3:5,7,11  
3:17,19 5:13  
19:17 20:5  
21:1 27:22  
32:22 35:5  
36:11 37:13  
38:8 42:20  
46:2,9 51:20  
52:16,19 53:4  
54:18 55:13  
56:1 57:23  
58:14,22  
**body** 6:15 29:18  
31:18 49:13  
50:19,19,22  
55:15,18,21,22  
56:13  
**Boston** 47:8  
**bottom** 48:6  
**bought** 35:11,16  
**bounces** 34:22  
**boundary** 9:4  
**Bradford** 56:5  
58:12  
**break** 47:25  
**breakdown** 32:7  
**breaking** 47:10  
54:9  
**break-down** 32:10  
**Brice** 47:5,6  
49:25  
**brief** 22:12,12  
26:1  
**Briefing** 11:9  
**bring** 9:6 18:14  
37:4,12 57:20  
**bringing** 46:5  
**broken** 13:15  
54:7  
**brought** 9:8  
43:22 51:24  
56:14  
**brunt** 45:21  
**brutality** 28:8  
28:17 40:15  
**budget** 50:12,15  
**bug** 37:25  
**building** 35:19

47:18  
**Bullock** 56:5,8  
58:13  
**bungalows** 13:14  
**burglaries** 13:14  
**burglary** 8:17  
11:19  
**business** 25:24  
25:24 35:13  
54:20 59:4  
**businesses** 13:15  
13:21  
**buzz** 13:1  
**B&E** 16:6 17:13  
**B&Es** 13:20 17:17  
17:18,21

---

**C**

---

**call** 18:7,15  
42:12 46:19  
55:21  
**called** 37:8,21  
47:10 56:11  
**calling** 47:12  
**calls** 48:23 49:4  
49:24  
**campaigning** 47:7  
47:24  
**capability** 11:20  
**capacity** 12:16  
18:21  
**captain** 6:5  
**car** 8:3 35:17  
48:2  
**cards** 10:16  
37:23 40:10  
**care** 20:20 25:16  
25:17 32:2,2  
**carjacking** 6:17  
**carries** 20:15  
57:8 59:12  
**cars** 7:24 47:22  
**case** 23:18 29:16  
29:16 33:10  
54:19  
**cases** 21:9,10,10  
21:17 22:1,24  
22:25 24:12,12  
24:13,15,15  
25:10 29:9,23  
30:2,5 33:15  
**categories** 7:9

**category** 12:21  
16:6  
**causation** 17:15  
**cause** 44:2  
**causes** 44:3  
**caution** 17:14  
**CCR** 22:12 23:1,9  
30:2  
**cease** 14:25  
**celebrity** 57:12  
**Celia** 2:2 3:18  
32:5 42:19  
**center** 27:23  
34:10  
**Central** 1:17  
18:12 21:15  
58:13  
**certain** 19:4,11  
30:3 34:9,14  
**certainly** 4:5  
19:13 25:12  
26:2 27:10  
28:18 32:23  
33:16,22 38:9  
45:24 50:2  
**CERTIFICATE** 60:1  
**certify** 60:8  
**Chair** 20:5,25  
55:12 56:22  
57:22,25 58:10  
**Chairman** 2:12  
3:4,7,14 4:2  
4:15 15:18  
18:22 19:16,25  
20:2,11,14  
23:10,19 24:9  
25:8,20 28:6  
32:4 34:16,25  
35:6 36:14  
38:14,19 39:2  
40:11,13 41:13  
41:18,23 42:17  
43:7 46:17  
53:18,21 54:4  
55:1,3,6 56:20  
57:1,7,20 58:4  
58:8,17,25  
59:3,8,12  
**Chairperson's**  
4:22  
**Chair's** 25:25  
**challenge** 29:25

**challenged** 8:1  
**challenges** 8:10  
**chambers** 39:22  
 41:21 43:1  
**chance** 24:23  
**change** 11:23  
 22:24 32:7  
 49:10,20  
**changes** 5:5,9,10  
 5:14,18 10:6  
 10:10 51:23  
**charge** 52:14  
**charged** 54:25  
**charges** 56:14  
**charter** 32:21  
 46:12  
**check** 46:20  
**chief** 2:18 3:10  
 5:20 6:8 9:6,8  
 9:20,20 18:10  
 18:24 21:9  
 22:8 31:19,20  
 35:25 36:18,19  
 36:21,25 37:20  
 37:21 38:5,24  
 39:5,16 40:5  
 41:25 42:4  
 43:23 46:2  
 50:1 51:11,24  
 58:11,19  
**Chief's** 3:10  
 5:20  
**chime** 50:2  
**choose** 7:9 27:8  
**Chrisnet** 8:7  
**Circuit** 14:1  
**circumstances**  
 30:4 34:15  
**citizen** 32:15,18  
 33:14  
**citizens** 9:25  
 15:23 23:17,21  
 25:4 27:7  
 31:24 33:6,17  
 34:5,13 40:3  
 41:4,6 51:18  
**city** 10:3,17  
 11:14 14:16,19  
 19:4 26:3,4,6  
 26:16,23 27:3  
 28:22,22 29:4  
 31:23 32:21

35:24,25 40:18  
 41:3 43:19,21  
 44:13,19,22,23  
 46:4,7,14,15  
 48:13,14 49:8  
 50:16 51:5,17  
 51:17 53:2,5  
 53:11  
**Citywide** 35:8  
**claim** 53:12  
**classification**  
 12:10  
**classified** 23:6  
**clerks** 48:20  
 49:21  
**close** 40:19 55:8  
 56:16  
**closed** 20:18  
 21:10 35:11  
 39:21 40:17  
 41:8,11 42:21  
 43:9,14 45:11  
 45:13 55:10,14  
 55:22,24 56:1  
 56:8,11,13,19  
 56:23 57:3,9  
 57:11,24 58:1  
 58:11 59:4  
**closely** 15:8  
**closing** 40:6  
**clothes** 22:15  
**club** 35:22  
**clubs** 15:9  
**Coalition** 28:7  
 28:16 40:15  
**colleague** 3:8  
**collected** 16:23  
**colonials** 13:15  
**come** 4:8,19 6:11  
 11:7 15:12  
 16:3 19:23  
 22:25 26:24  
 27:22 28:8  
 29:4 31:1  
 33:14 34:23  
 36:8 39:8 40:2  
 41:14,24 43:14  
 47:18 49:13  
 52:12 53:3  
 57:24  
**comes** 6:9 14:5  
 22:10,23 24:17

38:8,20,22  
 43:3 45:6 54:1  
 54:12  
**coming** 4:24  
 22:18 47:23,24  
 48:15 51:16  
**command** 9:23  
 10:16,16 12:9  
 18:10 39:25  
**Commander** 10:23  
**Commanders** 24:20  
**Commanding** 6:3  
**Commands** 42:2  
**Commencing** 1:19  
**comments** 20:20  
 52:15  
**commercial** 11:11  
**commission** 26:10  
 31:13 33:24  
 36:3 59:9  
 60:21  
**Commissioner** 3:9  
 4:3,5,15,16  
 15:20,21 16:8  
 16:13,21 17:6  
 17:22 18:1,2,3  
 20:5,9,10  
 21:22,24,25  
 23:4,11 24:7  
 25:23 28:4,12  
 35:23 38:3  
 39:16,19 45:23  
 49:25 56:22,25  
 57:25 58:3,16  
 58:24 59:6,7  
**Commissioners**  
 1:2 2:4,9,11  
 3:6,7 4:11 5:5  
 5:17 20:13  
 26:15 27:22  
 37:13 42:20  
 53:5 57:6 58:7  
 59:11  
**commitments**  
 37:18,24  
**committee** 4:21  
 27:6  
**common** 21:3  
**communicate** 25:4  
**communications**  
 27:21 55:8  
**community** 4:9

6:18 7:5 8:21  
 11:5 12:13  
 14:22 32:3  
 35:8 38:10  
 40:20,22 44:8  
 49:7 52:10  
**COMP** 9:7,10,17  
 9:21,22 15:14  
**companies** 53:10  
 53:15  
**company** 52:20  
 53:22  
**compared** 21:4  
**comparisons**  
 10:20  
**complain** 32:19  
**complainant**  
 22:11,21 23:4  
**complainants**  
 23:2  
**complaint** 23:6  
 30:23,24 33:4  
 33:12 34:1  
**complaints** 21:2  
 21:3,13 24:11  
 31:4,5 33:6,12  
 33:14,17  
**complete** 23:18  
 60:13  
**completed** 10:11  
**completes** 4:1  
 21:20  
**complied** 5:10  
**component** 13:24  
**computer** 7:23  
 60:11  
**concern** 21:18  
 32:24 52:18,25  
 53:17  
**concerned** 16:2  
 24:22 31:18  
 43:20  
**concerns** 8:12  
**concluded** 59:1  
 59:14  
**concludes** 59:3  
**conducted** 55:24  
**conference** 42:22  
 43:9  
**conferences**  
 42:24,25  
**configuration**

30:19  
**confiscated**  
 17:19  
**confiscations**  
 17:19  
**Conflict** 34:11  
**connected** 4:11  
**connectivity**  
 7:23  
**consent** 8:10  
 39:23  
**consider** 56:14  
**considered** 48:19  
**contact** 35:2  
**contacted** 23:2,5  
**contesting** 56:9  
**continue** 49:11  
**continues** 44:17  
**contravened**  
 58:14,16,17,22  
 58:24,25  
**control** 10:24  
**convening** 55:18  
**conveyed** 30:15  
 30:18  
**Cook** 37:8 41:16  
**Cook's** 39:22  
 41:15 42:12  
**Cooper** 3:20 28:1  
**cooperated** 50:4  
**cop** 48:5  
**copies** 19:17  
**cops** 49:14  
**copy** 20:16  
**core** 9:23  
**corporate** 14:23  
**corporatization**  
 28:22  
**correct** 16:10  
 23:9,14 24:6  
 60:13  
**correlation**  
 17:15  
**correlations**  
 17:16  
**cost** 7:15 19:10  
**costs** 19:15  
**Council** 26:5,16  
 27:3 35:24  
 36:1 43:21  
 44:13 46:7,14  
 46:15 50:16

53:11  
**Councilman** 46:5  
 46:13  
**Councilman's**  
 46:6  
**counsel** 29:22  
**county** 32:16  
 40:1 60:6,20  
**couple** 15:21  
 18:3,22 25:9  
 32:5 43:22  
 47:7,7,20  
**course** 33:13,19  
 54:10  
**court** 3:24 14:1  
 29:21 43:2  
**courtroom** 41:21  
**Courts** 53:25  
 54:1  
**covers** 7:18  
 13:16  
**created** 8:13  
**crew** 51:8  
**crime** 5:23 6:3,6  
 6:14,16,25 7:1  
 7:3,6,9,18 8:5  
 8:16,17,20 9:4  
 9:12,25 10:13  
 10:14,19 11:9  
 11:16 12:10,14  
 12:19 13:4,6,7  
 13:10 15:5,16  
 16:6,13,22  
 17:9,11,24  
 18:15 19:2  
 31:13 49:3  
**crimemapping.com**  
 7:2,10 16:18  
**crimes** 8:18,22  
 11:1 12:20,21  
**cross** 6:21  
**CSR** 60:18  
**CSR-7042** 1:21  
**CTE** 44:11  
**culture** 30:14,17  
**curious** 22:4  
**current** 8:15  
 22:24 50:15  
**currently** 11:21  
 29:21 32:12  
 50:15  
**custom** 14:20

**cut** 26:8  
**cuts** 26:6 44:12  
 44:25 46:8  
 50:21  
**cutting** 45:3,3,4  
**Cystic** 57:13

---

**D**

---

**daily** 22:16 24:5  
**Daliph** 3:19  
**Dan** 3:21  
**data** 6:6,23 7:20  
 12:17 14:5  
 16:20,22,23  
 17:9 18:5 19:1  
**data-driven** 6:9  
 6:24 15:2  
**day** 7:17 12:22  
 12:23 13:5,6  
 16:11 24:2  
 44:9 49:6 52:7  
 52:9,9  
**days** 5:12 7:17  
 16:25 17:2  
 23:1 24:13  
 25:2,11 32:8  
 47:7 52:19  
**day-to-day** 18:4  
**dealing** 31:11  
**deals** 41:10  
 45:11  
**Dear** 4:6  
**decide** 5:13  
**decided** 31:23  
**decision** 41:15  
 41:19 45:6,7  
 46:10 55:20  
**decisions** 43:25  
 45:21 55:25  
 56:2  
**decrease** 21:5,7  
 26:12  
**decree** 8:10  
 39:23  
**defend** 24:24  
**defines** 55:17  
**Definitely** 40:12  
**deliberating**  
 55:19  
**deliberations**  
 55:24  
**Delta** 15:6

**demeanor** 21:19  
**Democracy** 41:5  
**density** 11:12  
**department** 4:10  
 6:4,7 7:12,16  
 7:22,25 8:6,23  
 9:1,2,7,12  
 12:18 14:19  
 15:13 26:13  
 39:12 41:7,10  
 41:20 42:3,6  
 44:18 45:18  
 48:11,15,18  
 49:1 50:3,4,22  
 51:22 52:3,13  
 53:6,11 57:14  
**departments**  
 44:12 46:8  
**Department's**  
 19:21,22 24:20  
**Deputy** 2:18 3:10  
 5:20 18:23  
 35:25 36:25  
 37:20,20 38:23  
 39:5,16 40:5  
 42:1 50:1  
**description**  
 22:12,22  
**descriptions**  
 23:3  
**designed** 7:14  
**desirable** 32:18  
**desire** 30:3  
**detail** 22:16  
 24:5 29:14  
**details** 22:16  
 31:6  
**detect** 8:25  
**detection** 8:23  
**Detroit** 1:2,18  
 2:4,6 3:1 6:4  
 6:7 7:15 11:14  
 14:16 15:2,5,7  
 15:23 16:20  
 19:2,4 26:3,5  
 26:7,12,23  
 27:8,11 28:7  
 29:5 31:10  
 32:21 40:15,18  
 42:2 43:19,21  
 44:10,23 46:4  
 48:3,13 50:16



51:18 53:2,5  
 53:10 57:14  
**Detroit 's** 46:3  
**develop** 10:4  
 12:2  
**development** 9:13  
 12:4  
**device** 7:7  
**different** 22:16  
 29:11 31:9  
 44:12  
**dire** 45:1  
**direct** 18:17  
**direction** 13:8  
**directly** 7:6 9:1  
 11:8 12:24  
**Director** 3:19  
**Discipline** 53:7  
**discourage** 33:5  
**discouraged**  
 30:25 31:3,4,6  
 31:7 33:8  
**discuss** 5:13  
**discussed** 5:6  
 26:16  
**discussion** 57:2  
 57:19 58:5  
**disingenuous**  
 46:23  
**dispatch** 47:15  
 47:16  
**disregarding**  
 41:4  
**distance** 11:21  
 11:22 16:1  
**distributed** 8:25  
**district** 1:17  
 14:1 18:13  
 21:14,15 29:13  
 46:20  
**divided** 6:19  
**documented** 30:6  
**doing** 13:2 24:16  
 25:14 44:18,19  
 44:19 45:12  
 47:1 48:18  
 50:19 51:12,15  
 52:5,7,11  
 54:21  
**Donakowski** 3:21  
**Donnell** 2:13 3:9  
**door** 25:17 39:21

45:12 47:8,8  
**doors** 47:8  
**double** 44:7  
**download** 16:16  
**Downtown** 47:24  
 48:3  
**DPOA** 46:9 56:7  
**Drake** 38:6  
**drill** 10:18  
**drivers** 48:20  
 49:22  
**DUI** 29:18,18  
**D.C** 5:22 35:25  
 36:7 39:4,14

---

**E**

---

**earlier** 26:1  
**Earth** 15:14  
**Eastern** 10:17  
**Edison** 47:8  
**Edward** 46:3  
**effect** 29:23  
 31:17  
**effective** 49:19  
**efficient** 50:6  
 52:4  
**efficiently**  
 48:12  
**effort** 27:12  
 32:22 50:5  
 51:1 52:4  
**efforts** 10:1  
 26:22 50:23  
**eight** 21:15  
 35:10,12 49:6  
**either** 41:21  
**Elizabeth** 1:21  
 60:8,18  
**email** 7:7 9:1,3  
**employee** 56:15  
**EMS** 51:1,3  
**encourage** 28:20  
 33:5,6 34:2  
**encouraged** 30:24  
 31:2  
**encourages** 33:17  
**endorse** 51:22  
**endorses** 51:22  
**enforcement** 6:16  
 10:21 12:3,16  
 31:15  
**engaged** 31:16

**enhancements**  
 9:15  
**enjoy** 19:4  
**entering** 13:20  
**entertain** 20:7  
**entire** 38:10  
 42:2  
**entities** 6:20  
 19:1,5,11  
**entry** 13:18  
**equation** 33:21  
**equipment** 52:5  
**escape** 13:21  
**especially** 22:19  
 31:18  
**established**  
 32:22 34:14  
**evening** 47:5  
**Events** 58:13  
**everybody** 34:21  
 35:9 36:9  
**everyday** 49:6  
**exact** 18:13 27:5  
**exactly** 19:24  
 24:4,15 26:19  
**executive** 9:19  
**executives** 8:6  
 9:1  
**existed** 28:24  
 29:24 37:3  
**existing** 8:10  
**exists** 30:1,10  
**exit** 39:24  
**expand** 11:20  
**expeditiously**  
 54:11  
**experience** 6:15  
 37:4  
**experienced**  
 38:22  
**expires** 60:21  
**explored** 19:13  
**extend** 35:18  
**extent** 14:16  
**extra** 33:11

---

**F**

---

**facilitated** 9:18  
**fact** 31:6 50:4  
 51:24  
**fair** 31:25  
**family** 32:2

36:19 46:3  
**far** 11:15,24  
 24:21,22 25:5  
**fast** 33:3  
**Father** 4:6  
**fault** 37:3  
**favor** 20:12 57:3  
 58:6 59:10  
**FBI** 15:7 31:19  
**feature** 57:13  
**federal** 33:10  
 37:7 39:20  
 40:5 42:1  
**feel** 28:11 35:16  
**feet** 16:2,2  
**fell** 9:15  
**Fibrosis** 57:13  
**fight** 35:15  
 47:25 48:1  
**Fighters** 51:3  
**figure** 21:6  
**filed** 21:10,11  
 21:13,17  
**fill** 7:25 8:14  
**filled** 50:18  
**final** 5:9,15  
 10:8 27:18,18  
 40:8 42:6  
**finally** 19:16  
 24:23 30:7  
 31:8,21 34:4  
 37:6,11  
**financial** 46:10  
**find** 30:12,16,16  
 37:6,9 40:20  
 49:16  
**finding** 50:8  
**findings** 39:22  
 50:7  
**fire** 14:25 51:1  
 51:3  
**fired** 44:21,22  
**fireworks** 14:12  
 30:5  
**firmly** 26:11,13  
**first** 6:23 10:14  
 28:5 29:8  
 36:16 45:18  
 47:14 52:18  
**fit** 18:12  
**five** 31:16  
**flier** 57:17

**floor** 27:20  
**fodder** 28:21  
**FOIA** 19:6  
**folk** 51:13  
**folks** 42:12  
**follow** 23:5, 10  
 41:14 44:18  
**food** 34:22  
**forbid** 44:17  
**force** 6:16 21:20  
 44:24  
**forecast** 13:4  
**foregoing** 60:9  
**formally** 30:20  
**former** 31:19  
**formerly** 31:14  
**forth** 23:13  
 53:12 60:11  
**forty** 53:9  
**forum** 40:3 41:25  
**forward** 4:25  
 53:4, 23, 25  
**found** 29:20 33:9  
 35:11 48:16, 22  
 49:2  
**Foundation** 48:14  
 48:16, 22  
**four** 10:9, 12  
 23:1 47:22  
**free** 16:19  
**frequency** 7:17  
 11:16 13:8  
**frequently** 11:4  
 28:8  
**friends** 36:19  
**front** 25:17  
**frustrated** 45:10  
**full** 60:13  
**fully** 50:4  
**function** 18:25  
**funding** 49:17  
**funds** 31:16  
 48:10 49:15  
**further** 26:12  
 50:21  
**future** 7:20 27:2

---

**G**


---

**gain** 53:14  
**game** 57:12  
**games** 34:22  
**gang** 6:16 48:24

**gap** 7:25 8:15  
**generate** 7:16  
 9:16 11:17  
**generated** 8:8  
**generating** 18:25  
**generous** 51:9  
**gentlemen** 3:5  
**geocode** 14:6  
**geographic** 13:25  
**geographically**  
 15:23  
**geography** 13:5  
**George** 2:17 3:12  
 3:16 20:25  
 55:12 57:22  
**getting** 23:2  
 49:14  
**Giaquinto** 5:24  
 5:25 6:2, 2  
 15:25 16:10, 18  
 16:24 17:11, 25  
 18:9 19:3, 20  
 20:1  
**GIS** 6:20 11:10  
 14:13  
**give** 24:10 27:23  
 40:6 42:4, 10  
 43:21 44:2  
**given** 5:4 18:7  
 44:9  
**gives** 8:3  
**glad** 28:12  
**go** 5:2, 19 8:7  
 12:11, 13, 14, 15  
 17:1 18:15  
 20:6, 22 22:14  
 23:13, 25 27:3  
 27:5, 18 31:6  
 32:19, 19 35:25  
 36:1, 10 39:7  
 44:13 46:19  
**God** 44:17  
**Godbee** 43:23  
**goes** 11:25 13:11  
 16:22  
**going** 4:3, 24  
 5:16, 19 7:20  
 17:1 20:15  
 24:21 29:21  
 35:14 37:1  
 44:7, 16, 23, 23  
 45:5, 11, 17, 19

45:20 46:6, 24  
 47:8 49:9, 16  
 52:18 53:6  
 54:24, 25 55:7  
 55:8, 9 57:3, 15  
**Goldpaugh** 56:7  
**good** 3:4 5:25  
 6:1 16:12 19:3  
 22:9 24:17  
 34:19, 20 35:5  
 35:6 36:15  
 38:4 43:24  
 47:1, 5 52:16  
**Google** 15:12, 14  
**governmental**  
 19:5  
**grant** 14:14, 18  
**grapevine** 35:9  
**Graphical** 11:10  
**grass** 49:7  
**great** 7:22 8:19  
 18:9 20:3 24:7  
 32:24  
**greatest** 10:25  
 14:21  
**Greek** 29:15  
**greetings** 46:5  
**Group** 7:1  
**groups** 15:9  
**guess** 7:10 35:21  
**guide** 4:7 5:17  
**gun** 11:19 17:8  
**gunshots** 48:1  
**guy** 51:25, 25  
**guys** 19:22 43:22

---

**H**


---

**half** 16:2  
**half-mile** 11:22  
**hand** 33:2  
**handguns** 17:23  
**handled** 34:6  
**handles** 52:1  
**handling** 56:24  
 57:4 58:1  
**Hanson** 3:24  
**happen** 6:7 27:19  
 39:11 44:17  
**happened** 23:24  
 24:2 37:7 42:7  
 42:21 51:11  
**happening** 34:8

37:10 42:5  
**happens** 16:9  
 18:13 33:13  
 53:13 54:12  
**happy** 19:23 20:4  
 46:24  
**harder** 15:3  
**Headquarters**  
 27:15  
**hear** 6:8 20:21  
 39:4 43:13  
 53:23 56:14  
**heard** 39:4 48:1  
 58:10, 18  
**hearing** 5:6, 11  
 5:13, 15 27:19  
 37:7 57:2 58:5  
 59:14  
**hearings** 52:22  
**Heavenly** 4:6  
**Heights** 57:15  
**held** 27:14 39:21  
 57:19 59:4  
**help** 9:6 10:22  
 27:2 32:2  
**helps** 17:12  
**Herbert** 36:25  
**hereinbefore**  
 60:10  
**high** 17:18 22:3  
 22:4 31:15  
 49:7  
**highly** 52:2  
**Hines** 40:14, 14  
 41:13, 16, 22  
 42:16 43:11  
 45:23  
**hire** 49:15 50:13  
**hired** 48:13  
**hit** 46:15  
**hold** 20:15, 19  
**Holmes** 6:4  
**home** 47:10  
**Homeland** 31:19  
**homicide** 6:16  
**honorable** 32:1  
 46:4  
**honored** 45:15  
**hopefully** 26:19  
 52:13  
**hoping** 37:4, 11  
 37:13

**hosting** 9:21  
**hot** 8:3 11:12  
 18:16 35:11,12  
 35:22  
**hours** 7:17 17:3  
 19:9,15 49:6  
**Hubble** 35:10  
**hundred** 49:18

---

**I**


---

**identifiable**  
 22:6  
**identification**  
 8:19 12:5  
**identified** 23:8  
 23:12  
**identify** 10:23  
 10:25 11:14  
 12:8,8 16:6  
 17:2,3,3,12  
 22:17  
**identifying** 11:3  
 12:9  
**immediate** 12:2  
 13:23  
**immediately** 14:3  
 26:8 32:9  
 36:18  
**implementation**  
 10:4,8  
**implementations**  
 9:10  
**implemented** 9:17  
**implications**  
 32:15  
**important** 30:22  
**Impound** 52:17  
**improvement**  
 33:20  
**inch** 44:9,10  
**incident** 23:24  
**incidents** 15:23  
 16:3,9 18:16  
**include** 12:12  
 13:9  
**includes** 14:24  
**including** 26:7  
**independent**  
 30:21 31:12  
 34:8  
**indicted** 54:9  
**individual** 8:19

8:22 11:23  
**individuals** 9:8  
 13:4 14:2  
 16:16 23:20  
 30:13,21,24  
 31:22 51:18  
 54:14  
**indulge** 30:8  
 33:23  
**ineffectively**  
 29:12  
**information** 7:4  
 7:4 11:10 19:1  
 32:9,13 38:23  
 43:13 45:16  
 53:24 57:16,17  
**inhouse** 11:11  
 15:15 25:10  
**initial** 10:9  
 33:12  
**initially** 10:2  
**initiated** 31:12  
**initiative** 9:6  
 14:24 15:7  
 48:9  
**inside** 13:14  
 50:11  
**instance** 29:15  
 30:1 31:1  
 34:10  
**instances** 33:7  
 33:20  
**Institute** 9:9  
**intentional** 30:3  
**interaction**  
 32:17  
**Interestingly**  
 18:12  
**internally** 7:14  
**Internet** 8:13  
 9:2 11:8 19:21  
 19:22  
**interviewing**  
 33:13  
**interviews** 12:13  
**introduce** 3:14  
 38:9,19  
**introduced** 38:6  
**introductions**  
 4:1  
**investigate** 33:8  
 33:11

**investigation**  
 6:18 23:12  
 25:5 42:4  
**investigations**  
 21:9 24:25  
**investigative**  
 12:3  
**Investigator**  
 21:9 22:8  
 36:18,21 38:5  
**Investigators**  
 22:20 23:23  
 24:1 33:11  
**invited** 37:9  
 40:2  
**invitees** 55:23  
**invocation** 4:4  
**involve** 21:11,12  
 21:17  
**involved** 42:14  
**involving** 22:2  
**issue** 4:18 33:1  
 38:24 40:19  
 50:11 53:25  
**issues** 9:24 52:6  
**It'll** 36:8

---

**J**


---

**J** 56:7  
**Jerome** 2:12 3:6  
**Jessica** 2:14  
 20:5  
**job** 20:3 25:14  
 25:18 47:1  
**John** 56:7  
**joined** 20:4  
**Joseph** 52:16  
**Joy** 47:9,24  
**Judge** 37:8 39:21  
 41:15,16 42:11  
**judges** 42:25  
 43:18  
**July** 1:20 3:2  
 27:14 56:3  
 57:12  
**June** 21:3,3,8,11  
 21:13,17 60:21

---

**K**


---

**karate** 52:1  
**keep** 52:11  
**Kent** 3:20

**Kenyatta** 46:4  
**key** 7:5  
**kicked** 54:15  
**kicking** 14:25  
**kids** 34:22  
**kind** 9:22 15:3  
 15:16 41:10  
**knocking** 47:8  
**know** 9:4 16:4,5  
 19:11,14 22:3  
 22:4 23:21,23  
 25:15 26:21  
 27:3 28:2  
 29:18 30:8,18  
 32:5,21 33:7  
 33:17,20,22  
 34:1,23 36:11  
 38:16,17 39:6  
 40:8,16,24,25  
 41:1,11 42:12  
 43:16 44:3,15  
 45:13 47:13  
 49:14 50:12  
 51:6,6 52:8,12  
 52:22 54:6,14  
**knowledge** 17:10  
 17:23  
**known** 8:3 13:24  
 21:12 30:3  
**knows** 9:4 35:9  
**Koller** 1:21 3:23  
 3:24 60:8,18  
**Kwame** 46:4

---

**L**


---

**Lacey** 36:15,16  
 38:4,11,16  
 39:1,8,18  
 40:10,12,16  
**ladies** 3:4  
**lady** 29:17 47:14  
**language** 14:17  
**Lansing** 49:16  
**larceny** 11:20  
**large** 45:4  
**larger** 31:10  
**law** 31:15 40:23  
 54:7,9  
**laws** 52:22  
**layers** 7:18  
**Leach** 22:9,10  
 23:8,14 24:4,8

24:14 25:19  
**lead** 4:4 14:14  
**leading** 21:12, 18  
 52:14  
**leads** 12:4, 5  
**leave** 6:22 17:1  
**Lee** 2:18 3:10  
 5:20, 22 35:25  
 35:25 36:7  
 38:24 39:4  
**left** 24:14 45:6  
**legally** 53:23  
**LEIN** 8:4  
**let's** 25:15  
**level** 10:19 18:4  
 27:8  
**liaison** 46:4  
**Liberty** 57:15  
**libraries** 33:18  
**license** 35:20  
**licenses** 36:2  
**Licensing** 36:1  
**Lieutenant** 5:23  
 6:2 15:18, 21  
 18:3, 23 20:3  
 22:9 37:2, 21  
 37:22 39:6  
 47:19, 21  
**Lieutenants**  
 10:23  
**life** 9:24  
**limit** 28:1, 3  
**limited** 13:12  
 55:22  
**line** 48:6  
**link** 8:21  
**liquor** 35:20  
 36:1, 3  
**list** 13:24  
**listen** 28:9  
**listening** 23:20  
**literally** 51:8, 8  
**little** 7:13 26:2  
 42:10, 14 44:3  
 45:10  
**live** 26:3  
**location** 13:16  
 23:23  
**locations** 11:3, 4  
 13:12, 13  
**log** 24:1  
**logs** 24:5

**long** 3:25 31:23  
 36:13  
**longer** 42:14  
**look** 13:7 18:8  
 19:24 22:14  
 24:1 32:14  
 34:16 43:24  
 44:10 46:16  
**looking** 22:15  
 37:16 48:2  
**lot** 15:14 28:9  
 35:18 44:7  
 53:22  
**LT** 5:25 6:2  
 15:25 16:10, 18  
 16:24 17:11, 25  
 18:9 19:3, 20  
 20:1 22:9 23:8  
 23:14 24:4, 8  
 24:14 25:19

---

**M**


---

**main** 37:23  
**maintenance**  
 48:20 49:23  
**major** 32:14  
 44:24  
**majority** 22:5, 10  
 22:18, 23 56:15  
**making** 23:21  
 43:25 45:7, 22  
**man** 19:9  
**management** 9:23  
 52:3  
**Manhattan** 9:9  
**manner** 24:21  
**manufacturer**  
 17:23  
**map** 7:18 13:7, 17  
 14:8 16:1  
 18:15  
**mapping** 6:23, 25  
 7:2, 3, 12 11:12  
 12:20 14:20  
 15:13 16:14  
**maps** 7:16 11:17  
 15:12  
**Marcel** 47:5  
**Mary** 36:15  
**MAS** 22:19 24:17  
**massive** 50:14  
**match** 24:3

**matter** 50:4  
 51:24 58:20  
**matters** 34:12  
 55:10 56:24  
 57:4 58:2 59:2  
**Mayor** 6:8 26:4  
 40:4, 5 42:1  
 43:23, 25 44:5  
 46:10, 16 50:17  
 53:11  
**ma'am** 38:3, 15  
 39:3, 19 40:13  
 46:1  
**McKenzie** 48:14  
 48:16, 22 50:2  
 50:5 51:23  
**MCL** 55:20 56:12  
**MDOC** 7:19  
**mean** 23:12 37:15  
 41:5 44:6, 15  
 52:1  
**Measure** 10:13  
**mechanism** 15:24  
**mechanisms** 19:7  
**media** 57:14  
**meet** 4:20 40:22  
 41:20 56:13  
**meeting** 1:3 3:6  
 4:7 9:7, 18  
 10:9 15:14  
 27:4, 13, 16  
 32:25 37:1, 2  
 37:22 39:9, 15  
 39:24, 25 40:2  
 40:17, 17, 19, 21  
 40:25 42:8  
 45:14 55:17, 25  
 57:9, 24 59:5  
 59:10  
**meetings** 9:19, 21  
 28:9 31:11  
 40:23, 25 41:8  
 41:12 42:24  
 43:23 44:1, 2  
 45:12, 14 55:9  
 55:11, 15, 16, 17  
 55:21 56:12  
**Melville** 52:16  
 52:17 53:20  
 54:3, 22 55:2, 5  
**Melville's** 52:17  
**Melvin** 39:16

**member** 2:13, 14  
 40:15 46:9  
**members** 8:6 9:20  
 19:17 21:23  
 56:20 57:13  
**memos** 10:22  
**men** 4:10 46:20  
 49:18 51:7  
**mend** 28:24  
**mention** 37:25  
 39:4  
**mentioned** 19:18  
 30:2, 12 31:8  
 32:13  
**mercy** 54:1  
**message** 15:22  
**met** 39:18  
**method** 13:21  
**mic** 27:22  
**Michigan** 1:1, 18  
 2:6 3:1 42:23  
 60:4, 20  
**midnight** 46:19  
 46:21  
**midst** 41:3  
**mighty** 4:13  
**mile** 16:3, 3  
 35:10, 12  
**millage** 26:17, 20  
 27:6 50:24, 25  
**mindedness** 4:7  
**minute** 29:6 54:8  
**minutes** 5:3  
 20:15, 16, 17  
 36:22 47:20, 21  
**mischaracterized**  
 12:10  
**miscoded** 12:9  
**MO** 13:22  
**mobile** 7:24  
 16:14 48:24  
**moment** 25:25  
**monetary** 19:10  
**money** 32:1 45:4  
 45:5, 9 48:10  
 50:13 51:3  
**monitor** 37:7  
 39:1, 2 41:8  
 43:12  
**monitors** 33:10  
 39:20 40:6, 17  
 41:23 42:1, 7

45:25  
**month** 12:15 14:5  
 14:7  
**monthly** 21:3  
**months** 26:11  
 50:20  
**Moore** 46:2,3,17  
 47:1,4  
**morning** 18:13  
 42:21 46:21  
**motion** 20:7,15  
 56:18 57:8,23  
 58:9 59:5,12  
**MOUs** 31:12  
**move** 4:18 20:9  
 35:13,15,20  
 36:2,6 53:23  
 53:25 55:9  
 56:18,22,23  
 57:9,11,25  
 59:5  
**moved** 20:11  
 50:10 57:1  
 58:4 59:6,8  
**moving** 13:6,8  
 16:15 24:20  
 25:23 51:13  
 52:8,20 53:21  
**multiple** 8:22

---

**N**


---

**name** 3:6 4:13  
 23:22 27:23  
 28:6 35:7  
 36:15,25 38:6  
 40:14 46:3  
 47:5  
**nature** 22:17  
**near** 7:19  
**necessarily**  
 17:15  
**need** 10:6 19:1  
 29:6 30:12,16  
 33:21 40:24,25  
 41:11 45:18  
 49:19,21 51:16  
 55:10  
**needed** 10:10  
**needs** 31:10  
 51:17,18  
**neighborhood**  
 14:6 15:9

**neighborhoods**  
 15:8 27:9  
 45:20  
**never** 23:8 25:6  
 29:19,20 37:5  
 37:22 46:15  
**new** 13:1 24:24  
 25:7,24 30:19  
 35:13,21,22  
 36:18,19,21  
 50:3,13 51:16  
**news** 26:3 34:20  
 35:8 52:25  
**night** 14:12  
 47:23 48:3  
**nine** 46:9 49:6  
**noncompliance**  
 7:21  
**nonprofit** 19:12  
**non-supervisory**  
 30:14  
**non-sworn** 30:20  
**normally** 15:5  
**Northeastern**  
 21:14 46:20  
**nose** 45:8 54:19  
**Notary** 60:19  
**noteworthy** 25:9  
**noticed** 47:10  
**notices** 42:9  
**notified** 43:5  
**notify** 36:9  
**November** 27:7  
**nowadays** 45:2  
**number** 22:3  
 23:22 24:12,12  
 24:13 26:22  
 31:9 49:3 50:8  
 50:10,14 51:6  
 52:3,6  
**numbers** 24:22  
 32:6

---

**O**


---

**objective** 37:23  
**obligation** 54:11  
**occur** 13:5  
**occurred** 29:10  
**occurrence** 11:16  
**OCI** 24:12,24  
 25:10 30:19  
 32:7

**offender** 7:20  
 13:12,22 17:4  
**offenders** 13:19  
 13:24 14:8  
**offer** 33:24  
**office** 3:10 5:20  
 6:10 11:7  
 12:12 13:7  
 14:16 15:12  
 17:1 19:23  
 21:8 23:16  
 24:14 42:3,3  
 46:5  
**officer** 3:20,21  
 6:3 22:15,17  
 23:18,22 28:1  
 32:16 56:5,6,8  
 58:12,20  
**officers** 6:21  
 8:4 10:23 18:5  
 18:17 19:15  
 21:12 22:2,5  
 23:3,5,7,15  
 26:20,25,25  
 28:21 29:9,10  
 29:24 47:17  
 48:8,12,17,18  
 48:21,21 49:1  
 49:15,23 50:10  
 50:13,14 51:2  
 51:21 52:8,9  
**offices** 8:16  
**officially** 20:6  
 38:8  
**officials** 26:7  
 31:15  
**off-the-record**  
 57:18  
**oh** 53:4  
**Okay** 6:4 17:22  
 18:1 36:11  
 39:1 40:10  
**old** 24:25 25:24  
 35:21  
**older** 22:23  
**Omega** 7:1  
**once** 6:4 7:10  
 8:25 12:15  
 14:5 30:16  
 31:21 48:1  
 49:16  
**ones** 25:16

**open** 7:14 21:9  
 24:12 25:15  
 27:20 33:15  
 40:3,23 41:25  
 42:8,24 45:14  
 55:11,15,17,20  
 55:25 56:12  
 58:2  
**opening** 34:21  
**operate** 19:5  
**operating** 49:11  
**operation** 14:25  
**operations** 6:17  
 11:6 50:6  
**opportunities**  
 52:12  
**opportunity**  
 28:23 33:25  
 46:19  
**opposed** 20:14  
 30:21 57:7  
 58:8 59:12  
**options** 26:24  
**oral** 27:21 55:8  
**order** 4:17 36:2  
 56:18 57:24  
**organization**  
 29:3  
**organizational**  
 51:25 52:1,2  
**organizations**  
 14:22 31:13  
 34:9  
**original** 23:6  
**ourself** 7:25  
**outcome** 10:5  
 25:5  
**outstanding**  
 13:25 25:14,18  
**oversight** 31:17  
**owns** 35:21

---

**P**


---

**PAGE** 1:14  
**pain** 36:12  
**Pannell** 34:19,20  
 34:25 35:3  
**papers** 53:1  
**paperwork** 29:20  
**paraded** 44:5  
**parades** 14:13  
**Park** 57:15

**parking** 35:18  
**part** 8:16 11:9  
 12:11, 19 14:23  
 18:20 56:13  
**particular** 5:15  
 8:20 11:15  
 12:25 14:8  
 17:9 29:13  
 33:14 53:25  
**particularly**  
 11:19  
**partnering** 51:15  
**partners** 9:3  
 15:2  
**partnership** 7:1  
 14:22 15:6  
**pass** 15:4 18:18  
 37:12  
**passed** 26:10, 21  
 37:3 39:10  
 50:16  
**passes** 58:9  
**patrol** 6:17 12:2  
 12:22, 24 49:2  
**pattern** 8:18, 22  
 8:25  
**patterns** 8:16  
 12:8 17:12  
**pause** 4:6  
**pay** 20:19 26:8  
 43:12 45:3  
 53:2, 10, 13  
 56:4, 10 58:12  
 58:14, 19, 22  
**paycheck** 43:15  
**paying** 43:13, 15  
 45:8, 8, 8  
**payroll** 48:17  
**Peace** 34:11  
 46:16  
**people** 4:9, 12  
 11:6 13:18  
 17:15 25:1  
 28:19, 20, 25  
 34:1 37:14  
 43:24 44:21, 25  
 45:2, 7, 18, 19  
 45:22  
**people's** 43:15  
**perceived** 34:6  
**percent** 21:5, 7  
 21:11, 14, 14, 15

21:16, 19, 19, 20  
 21:20 22:2  
 26:8 28:13  
 47:2 49:18  
 50:5  
**performance**  
 10:13 38:12  
**period** 8:8 11:22  
 21:4, 6  
**periods** 10:20  
**person** 37:2 41:9  
 46:10  
**personal** 7:7  
**personally** 26:14  
**personnel** 3:20  
 6:15, 15 12:4  
 13:11 18:11  
 30:13, 14, 20  
 32:7 55:10  
 56:24 57:4  
 58:2  
**persons** 30:11  
**pertaining** 40:16  
 45:17 52:23  
**petition** 36:7  
**philosophy** 9:23  
**phone** 7:9 47:15  
 47:20  
**phones** 16:16  
**pick** 15:25  
**picked** 47:14  
**piece** 9:13  
**place** 7:10 10:3  
 11:1, 16 12:21  
 12:22, 24 13:14  
 13:16 14:8, 15  
 35:21, 22 36:12  
 40:23 57:15  
 60:10  
**placed** 26:20  
**places** 16:5  
**plain** 22:15  
**plan** 26:18  
**Planning** 14:12  
**plate** 49:13  
 51:19  
**plates** 8:4  
**platform** 16:14  
**play** 26:8 53:2  
**played** 9:12  
**please** 3:15  
 18:23 34:23

57:5, 21  
**pleased** 50:7  
**pleasure** 56:21  
**podium** 27:23  
**point** 11:15, 15  
 11:23 16:1  
 23:11 25:9  
 44:15 46:18  
 47:6 56:18  
**points** 11:18  
**police** 1:2 2:4, 8  
 3:5, 7, 19 6:4, 7  
 6:11 7:15  
 14:19 26:7, 12  
 27:11, 15, 22  
 28:1, 8 30:19  
 31:9 32:16  
 35:8 39:12  
 40:5, 15 41:7, 9  
 41:25 42:2, 20  
 44:17 45:18  
 46:21 47:11, 16  
 47:22 48:2, 4, 8  
 48:12, 18 49:15  
 50:13, 22 51:1  
 51:2, 12 52:20  
 53:5, 5, 11 56:5  
 56:6 57:14  
 58:12, 20 59:9  
**police-wise** 37:5  
**policing** 6:9  
 32:11 48:19  
**policy** 55:20  
**portion** 16:25  
**position** 38:7  
 46:6, 13  
**positions** 50:17  
**possible** 12:5  
 24:2  
**possibly** 51:14  
**post** 45:25  
**posted** 11:7  
 33:18  
**potential** 18:25  
 54:24  
**power** 26:24  
**practical** 18:4  
**practically**  
 43:21  
**pray** 4:13  
**precinct** 10:17  
 10:18, 18, 22

11:4 18:19, 19  
 18:20 21:13, 15  
 23:24, 25 29:13  
 34:20 47:12  
 58:21  
**precise** 42:11  
**predictive** 13:2  
 13:10  
**preface** 28:15  
**preparing** 19:9  
**present** 2:16  
 3:17 26:19  
 30:9 55:18  
**presentation**  
 5:21, 22 17:8  
**presented** 56:4  
**president** 35:8  
**pressure** 45:3  
**pretty** 16:12  
 22:25  
**prevention** 14:24  
**previous** 38:7  
**primarily** 6:19  
 9:18 29:10  
**prior** 9:10 10:20  
 28:15  
**private** 19:12  
**privilege** 57:8  
**privy** 42:13  
**probably** 6:10  
 14:6, 20 32:7  
**problem** 10:25  
 11:3 30:1  
 38:22  
**problems** 14:15  
 14:18 30:10  
**problem-solving**  
 9:25  
**procedure** 21:19  
**proceed** 52:24  
**proceedings** 3:22  
 60:10, 14  
**process** 16:23  
 30:23, 24 31:2  
 31:11 33:4  
 34:1, 3 36:8  
**produce** 18:15  
**product** 6:12  
 11:11 12:2  
**production** 15:6  
**professional**  
 14:23 39:12, 13



52:2  
**professionally** 46:22  
**profiles** 10:16  
**profit** 19:6,14  
**program** 9:13,16  
 11:10,13 33:25  
**programing** 9:14  
**programmers** 15:11  
**programming** 15:15  
**progress** 7:23  
 39:23 40:7  
 42:5 50:9  
**Project** 15:6,7  
**properly** 20:11  
 57:1 58:4 59:8  
**proposals** 30:9  
**proposed** 5:5  
**prosper** 53:14  
**protected** 32:23  
**provide** 7:1 8:2  
 8:5,23 10:15  
 10:19 12:7,17  
 12:22 13:24  
 14:13 15:13  
 19:8  
**provided** 9:18  
 13:9  
**provides** 7:3  
**providing** 9:19  
**public** 5:11,13  
 5:15 6:25  
 20:20,21 26:7  
 26:16 27:18  
 31:23 37:9  
 38:17 42:8  
 43:5,12 44:4  
 50:25 51:4,5  
 55:15,18,20,21  
 55:22 56:1,13  
 57:24 60:19  
**publication** 27:18  
**published** 5:11  
**pulled** 32:13  
**punitively** 54:7  
**purpose** 8:18  
 24:4 55:19  
 56:9,17 57:4  
**purposes** 23:16

55:23 56:23  
**pursuant** 56:11  
**push** 44:24  
**put** 4:7 5:11  
 14:7 16:25  
 19:20,21 23:24  
 26:25 27:7  
 32:25 43:5  
 44:24 49:2  
 50:23,24 51:1  
 51:2  
**p.m** 1:19 3:3  
 27:14 48:3  
 57:16 59:14  
**P54338** 2:2

---

**Q**


---

**quality** 9:24  
**quarterly** 43:3  
**question** 17:7  
 18:10 28:13  
 32:18 33:16  
 35:1 36:16  
 41:19,22 42:18  
 43:11 48:15  
 49:5 50:24  
 52:18,25  
**questions** 15:19  
 15:22 18:3,22  
 20:2 21:22  
 25:20 38:1  
 40:3 44:4,5  
 53:19,20  
**question's** 52:18  
**quick** 9:22  
**quickly** 33:2  
**quite** 10:8 13:2  
 16:11  
**quorum** 4:17,19  
 4:21 55:18  
 56:15

---

**R**


---

**radar** 11:5  
**radio** 33:25  
**raise** 50:25  
**raised** 28:12  
**randomized** 34:5  
 34:13  
**ranking** 31:15  
**Raphael** 56:6  
 58:20

**rate** 5:1  
**reaching** 27:1  
**read** 53:1  
**real** 24:16 43:24  
 45:7 49:14  
**realize** 37:14  
**really** 18:19  
 19:3 22:20  
 44:6,8 45:19  
**realtime** 16:11  
**reason** 48:7  
**receive** 16:8  
 20:23  
**received** 21:2  
**recommendation** 9:9 56:4 58:11  
 58:19,23  
**recommendations** 56:10  
**recommended** 46:15 51:23  
**record** 3:17 17:9  
 17:11 20:4  
 27:24 47:6  
 55:13 56:2  
 57:23  
**recorded** 29:19  
**recording** 3:21  
**records** 14:7  
**recover** 19:10,15  
**redevelop** 48:25  
**reduce** 49:3  
**reduced** 60:11  
**reducing** 9:25  
 48:10  
**refer** 11:18  
**referenced** 16:21  
**referencing** 54:5  
 54:6  
**referring** 37:19  
**regarding** 21:23  
**regards** 13:23  
 14:12  
**regional** 9:3  
**registry** 7:20  
**REGULAR** 1:3 2:13  
 2:14  
**reimbursed** 19:8  
**reiterate** 4:23  
**related** 36:20  
 48:19  
**relates** 4:22,25

4:25 5:18  
 24:11 32:6,11  
 33:4 35:1,2  
 38:5 39:20,22  
 40:7 41:8  
 42:11 51:10  
 53:21 54:4  
**relations** 6:18  
 11:5  
**relationship** 28:13  
**relevant** 12:19  
**remember** 36:20  
**remove** 53:7  
**rendering** 55:19  
**replicate** 6:12  
**replicated** 9:11  
**report** 4:23 8:3  
 10:16 13:10,11  
 18:8 20:23,24  
 21:2,21,23  
 25:21 26:1,1  
 42:4 43:3  
 45:25 50:2,5  
 51:23  
**reported** 60:9  
**REPORTER** 3:23  
 60:1  
**reporting** 3:25  
 11:8  
**reports** 8:2,8,17  
 9:16 11:7 12:6  
 12:9 17:5  
 18:18 19:9,18  
 19:19 23:21  
**represent** 10:24  
**representation** 22:5  
**representative** 56:7  
**representing** 3:9  
**represents** 21:5  
 21:7  
**requested** 56:8  
**requests** 41:20  
 55:14  
**required** 56:16  
**research** 31:14  
 49:3  
**residences** 13:20  
**Residents** 49:9  
**resolution** 26:10

50:20,22 52:24  
**resolutions** 4:24  
**resolved** 26:21  
**respect** 14:14  
**respond** 14:3  
 22:8 36:9  
**responding** 10:2  
 49:4  
**response** 10:4,5  
 10:20 11:2  
 12:3 13:23  
**rest** 9:2  
**result** 28:20  
 33:15  
**results** 12:12  
**resumé** 38:21  
**retained** 29:22  
**retiring** 50:15  
**return** 58:1  
**revenue** 18:25  
**review** 8:7,17  
 12:6  
**reviews** 33:10  
**right** 24:18  
 25:23 27:23  
 28:2 38:17  
 40:9,18 41:3  
 43:12,16,19  
 44:23 47:18  
 48:2 50:15  
 53:10 57:8  
**rights** 32:20,23  
 41:4 44:16  
**robberies** 8:18  
 17:12,13  
**robbery** 11:20  
 13:19  
**robust** 7:13  
**role** 9:12  
**roll** 18:7,15  
 44:9 46:19  
**rolled** 48:1  
**Ron** 28:7  
**room** 2:5 18:15  
 33:20 44:21  
 45:11 47:9  
 52:9  
**routes** 15:1  
**routine** 14:11  
**routinely** 8:17  
**RST** 48:24  
**rule** 5:5,9,10,14

5:18 27:17  
**rules** 5:18 43:2  
**ruling** 43:18  
**running** 49:24

---

**S**

---

**safe** 14:25 15:8  
 48:7 49:8  
**safety** 26:7,17  
 26:22 50:24,25  
 51:4,5  
**salaries** 26:12  
**salary** 26:6  
**salient** 28:11  
**sampling** 34:5  
**Sandra** 40:14  
**SARA** 10:1  
**satisfied** 43:25  
**Saturday** 47:23  
 48:3  
**saying** 45:16  
 50:23 51:9  
 53:10 54:23  
**says** 21:2 53:4  
**scan** 10:2  
**Scanning** 10:1  
**scenes** 12:14  
**scheduled** 5:7  
**school** 15:1  
**scope** 11:21 17:7  
**Scott** 28:4,7,7  
 32:4 33:23  
 34:18  
**scout** 7:24  
**screws** 33:21  
**second** 20:10  
 34:20 52:24  
 53:3 58:18  
 59:7  
**Secondly** 30:18  
**seconds** 33:24  
**Secretary** 2:17  
 3:11,13,16,17  
 3:24 4:2 20:24  
 20:25 21:1,25  
 22:7 25:22  
 55:7,12,13  
 57:22,23 58:9  
 58:10,18 59:1  
**Secretary's**  
 20:23 21:2,21  
 21:23 25:21

**section** 55:9  
**sector** 19:12  
**security** 27:8  
 31:19  
**see** 4:16 5:2,3  
 6:12 9:16 10:5  
 11:17 12:23  
 13:6 17:3,16  
 17:20 18:11,16  
 18:23,24 28:23  
 34:13 37:17  
 38:4 41:7  
 43:20 44:9  
 45:24 49:7,13  
**seeing** 57:2 58:5  
**seek** 32:20  
**selected** 7:8  
 38:13,14,16  
**selecting** 16:7  
**selection** 16:4  
**send** 37:1  
**sent** 7:6,9 15:22  
**September** 48:13  
**servants** 31:23  
**serve** 4:8  
**service** 3:25 7:8  
 8:21 16:7  
 21:19 35:2  
**services** 19:8  
**serving** 3:8 4:12  
**session** 39:21  
 42:22 55:11,22  
 55:25 56:1,13  
 56:16,19,23  
 57:3,10,11,21  
 57:24 58:1,2  
 58:11 59:4  
**sessions** 20:18  
 43:15 55:14  
 56:9,11  
**set** 15:24 16:1  
 37:1 53:8  
 60:10  
**sets** 18:5  
**settlement** 42:22  
 42:23,25 43:9  
**seven** 21:16  
 24:15 25:14  
**sex** 7:20 8:18  
**shaping** 26:17  
**share** 29:23  
**shared** 31:7

**Sharon** 34:19  
**Shears** 36:21  
**sheets** 24:1  
**sheriff** 32:17  
**Sherlock** 6:4  
**She'll** 32:8  
**shift** 10:23  
 18:14  
**shootings** 7:19  
**short** 29:7  
**show** 12:20 19:23  
 26:19 37:24  
 44:1,2 47:17  
**showed** 37:5,22  
 46:22 47:11  
**showing** 38:25  
**shown** 27:11  
**shows** 54:13  
**side** 36:12  
**Sig** 51:25  
**Sigma** 51:25  
**sign** 16:7  
**significant**  
 24:10 50:8  
**signing** 7:7  
**simple** 56:15  
**simply** 29:7  
**sir** 3:12 4:1  
 21:21,24 22:22  
 23:9,9,14 24:6  
 25:19,22 28:6  
 34:18 55:5,6  
 57:20 59:2  
**sit** 37:15  
**sitting** 33:10  
**situation** 29:10  
 30:4,10 39:9  
 39:11 41:10  
 46:24  
**six** 47:21  
**skeleton** 51:8  
**smart** 16:16  
**smarter** 15:3  
**software** 9:14  
**solid** 18:20  
**solution** 7:12  
**solutions** 49:14  
 51:16  
**solved** 44:8  
**somebody** 39:12  
 47:10  
**soon** 45:24



**sorry** 3:22 44:24  
**sought** 14:19  
**source** 7:14  
**spacial** 7:4  
**speak** 6:8 10:16  
 39:14 43:14  
**special** 6:17  
 11:5 29:11,14  
**specialized**  
 48:23  
**specific** 12:21  
 55:23  
**specifically**  
 11:13 31:11  
**specify** 34:2  
**spell** 27:24  
**spent** 19:9  
**spite** 46:24  
**spots** 18:16  
**spotting** 11:13  
**Squad** 48:24  
**SS** 60:5  
**staff** 3:15 22:1  
 25:13 32:12,24  
 33:16  
**stand** 26:13  
 28:18,19 31:22  
 31:24 46:7  
 58:15,23  
**standards** 53:9  
**standing** 28:25  
 46:14 47:2  
**standpoint** 42:6  
 43:10 50:12  
**Stars** 35:10  
**start** 18:14  
 35:13 44:18  
**started** 48:2  
**starting** 22:25  
**starts** 11:24  
**Stat** 9:7,10,17  
 9:21,22 15:14  
**state** 1:1 6:11  
 32:16 34:11  
 60:4  
**statement** 14:15  
 14:17 28:11  
**states** 56:12  
**static** 13:7  
**Statical** 6:20  
**stating** 26:11  
**station** 47:25

48:4  
**stations** 33:19  
**statistical**  
 10:19  
**statistics** 11:2  
**status** 7:21 14:2  
**statutes** 42:23  
**stenographically**  
 60:9  
**step** 6:23 49:13  
 51:18  
**Sterling** 57:15  
**stolen** 8:2,4  
**stop** 53:6  
**Store** 16:19  
**stored** 19:24  
**straights** 45:1  
**street** 8:20  
 13:13 18:5  
 26:25 27:1  
 50:11 51:2,21  
**streets** 46:25  
 48:6  
**strengthen** 51:3  
**stress** 24:19  
**strides** 7:23  
**Studies** 34:11  
**stuff** 23:3 24:17  
 25:2 45:11  
 52:23  
**subject** 42:24  
 55:15  
**subjective** 43:2  
**submit** 29:17  
**suggest** 34:4,9  
**suggestions** 52:4  
**suit** 44:18  
**summaries** 8:5  
 9:19 10:19  
**summary** 9:22  
 12:7 22:12  
**sums** 15:16 45:4  
**Sunday** 57:12  
**supervision**  
 60:12  
**supervisors**  
 30:15  
**supervisory**  
 30:13  
**support** 14:13  
 27:2,11 28:20  
 31:25 42:23

48:9 50:21,23  
 52:10,13 56:25  
 58:3  
**supported** 20:12  
 57:2 58:5 59:9  
**supporting** 28:25  
 47:2  
**supportive** 28:18  
**supposed** 36:24  
 37:21 39:5,6,8  
 40:22 41:2  
 45:12,13  
**sure** 6:6 12:18  
 23:16 24:20  
 26:22,24 29:5  
 32:22 36:11  
 39:10 43:5,10  
 45:24  
**suspension** 56:4  
 56:9,14 58:12  
 58:14,19,22  
**suspensions**  
 20:19  
**sustained** 23:15  
 25:3  
**sworn** 30:20,22  
 48:21  
**system** 11:10  
 22:19 24:17

---

**T**


---

**table** 3:11 40:4  
 46:15  
**tack** 26:2  
**Tact** 48:24  
**tails** 51:7  
**take** 7:10 11:6  
 11:21 12:1,17  
 14:4,13 16:5  
 19:24 20:20  
 26:25 27:6  
 32:2,2 37:12  
 49:1 54:13  
 57:15  
**taken** 1:16 7:24  
 13:22 17:20  
 41:5  
**taker** 28:1  
**talented** 52:2  
**talk** 7:10 12:13  
 29:8 36:24  
 44:7

**talked** 4:23  
 50:20  
**Tamale** 35:11,12  
 35:22  
**target** 10:22  
**task** 6:16  
**Taylor** 2:14  
 15:20 20:6,10  
 56:25 58:3  
 59:7  
**Team** 16:22  
**tear** 35:17  
**technology** 7:14  
 8:1,11,15  
**tell** 18:4 41:12  
 54:13  
**ten** 10:15 21:14  
 21:14,19,20  
 26:8 33:24  
**tenant** 39:10  
**tenants** 37:22  
 39:9  
**tenant's** 37:2  
**tentative** 26:18  
**ten-ish** 27:4  
**term** 13:1  
**terms** 28:21 30:7  
 30:10,18 40:17  
 45:17  
**test** 12:18  
**testing** 17:4  
**text** 15:22  
**thank** 3:13,16  
 4:2,15 15:18  
 18:1,2 20:3,25  
 24:7 25:19  
 26:14,15 28:3  
 28:4 32:3,4  
 34:16,18 35:4  
 36:13,14 40:13  
 45:23 46:1,17  
 47:4 49:24,25  
 55:5,6 57:10  
 59:1,13  
**theft** 6:17 11:19  
**theirs** 41:24  
**theorized** 6:5  
**thing** 6:24 7:5  
 14:21 18:13  
 24:19,22 44:20  
 47:14 48:21  
**things** 4:12 8:13

9:5 14:10  
 15:12 18:11  
 22:16 26:9  
 28:10 29:5  
 32:5 33:9 34:6  
 37:18,25 42:21  
 47:7 51:10  
 52:7  
**think** 15:16  
 24:10 25:8  
 29:25 30:11,22  
 31:3,10 35:9  
 36:20 39:18  
 48:11 54:15  
**thinking** 29:16  
**third** 48:18  
**thirty** 53:9,14  
**thousand** 48:17  
**three** 4:24 16:11  
 23:1 56:16  
**threshold** 11:18  
 12:1  
**throws** 40:18  
**Thursday** 1:20  
 5:8 27:14 38:9  
 56:3  
**tighten** 33:21  
**Tim** 22:9  
**time** 4:3 5:10,16  
 5:19,21 8:8  
 10:12 12:22  
 13:5 16:9 20:6  
 20:22,23 24:2  
 24:18 27:5,17  
 27:20,25 28:1  
 29:4 30:8  
 36:13 37:6  
 43:1 44:10  
 48:11,16 54:1  
 54:12 55:7  
 60:10  
**timely** 24:21  
**times** 10:20 11:3  
 12:25 16:11  
 28:9  
**today** 3:8,15 4:4  
 5:4 20:7,18  
 23:20 24:11  
 39:22 49:17  
**today's** 20:8  
 59:9  
**tomorrow** 39:24

40:8  
**top** 8:9  
**topic** 43:2  
**touch** 22:11,21  
**tow** 4:25 5:6,18  
 27:17 53:9,14  
 53:22  
**tower** 53:1,3  
**towing** 4:25  
 52:17,20  
**Town** 29:15  
**track** 17:14,17  
 17:23  
**tracking** 19:19  
**traffic** 48:24  
 49:23  
**train** 47:25  
**training** 6:21  
**transcription**  
 60:12,13  
**transfer** 36:2  
 47:15,16  
**transpired** 40:24  
**travel** 13:8  
**tremendous** 45:2  
**trend** 12:7  
**trends** 11:2  
**true** 24:3 60:13  
**trumped** 46:11,11  
**trust** 34:13  
**try** 6:12 22:20  
**trying** 7:25  
 39:10  
**Tuesday** 27:3  
 40:1 42:7  
**turn** 9:10 19:10  
 37:16 55:7  
**Turner** 39:14,17  
**TV** 37:16  
**tweaks** 10:5  
**twenty** 53:9  
**two** 6:19 10:7  
 29:9,22 31:14  
 36:22 42:20  
 53:18,20 54:5  
 55:14  
**two-minute** 27:25  
**type** 9:7 13:10  
 13:13,15 32:25  
 48:9  
**types** 17:8,12  
**t-shirt** 47:9

---

**U**


---

**understand** 17:6  
 26:4 32:16  
 54:3,22  
**understanding**  
 54:23  
**unidentified**  
 23:15 28:14  
**Union** 46:14  
**unions** 28:18,19  
 46:7,11  
**unit** 5:23 6:3,19  
 6:20,22  
**units** 7:24 21:12  
 29:11 48:23  
 49:23  
**University** 34:11  
**unknown** 21:11  
 22:2,13 23:6  
 23:18 29:8,10  
 29:24  
**unlawful** 40:19  
 41:16 44:20  
**unlawfully** 43:19  
**unlimited** 31:15  
**unveiled** 39:23  
**update** 5:3 24:10  
**updated** 16:10  
**upset** 44:3 49:9  
**use** 8:3 18:6,11  
 24:25 37:15  
**useful** 12:2,19  
**usefulness** 7:5  
 17:5  
**uses** 18:21  
**usually** 12:15  
**utilize** 14:8

---

**V**


---

**vacation** 3:25  
**valid** 12:18  
**validate** 16:22  
 16:23  
**validating** 16:24  
**valued** 6:14  
**varies** 18:19  
**various** 14:22  
 33:19  
**vast** 43:2  
**vehicle** 8:2,5  
 48:20 49:22

**vendor** 54:10  
**verbiage** 43:8  
**vetted** 36:3  
 54:17 55:4  
**Vice** 20:5  
**victim** 13:11  
 53:4,12  
**victimology**  
 13:12  
**victims** 12:14  
 13:20  
**video** 37:16  
**violence** 14:24  
 15:5  
**violent** 6:16  
**visit** 10:14  
 12:14  
**visits** 43:4  
**voluntarily**  
 31:22  
**vote** 4:20 5:9,14  
 5:15 27:6  
 44:13 56:15  
**voted** 26:6  
**voters** 50:24,25  
**voting** 4:17,18  
 27:16

---

**W**


---

**wait** 24:16 54:8  
**waiting** 4:16  
 36:22 53:23  
**walked** 47:9  
**want** 16:4,5  
 23:10 25:25  
 26:1,14,15,21  
 27:13,20 28:5  
 28:15 29:2,6  
 30:9 34:21  
 36:11,22 37:25  
 40:11,16 41:18  
 46:18 47:6  
 50:1,2,24  
 51:19 54:18,20  
 54:21 57:16  
**wanted** 4:23  
 13:25 37:17  
 39:11  
**wants** 35:12,17  
**Warfield** 2:12  
 3:4,6,14 4:2  
 4:15 15:18

18:2,22 19:16  
 19:25 20:2,11  
 20:14 21:22  
 23:10,19 24:9  
 25:8,20,23  
 28:5,6 32:4  
 34:16,25 35:6  
 35:23 36:14  
 38:3,14,19  
 39:2,16,19  
 40:11,13 41:13  
 41:18,23 42:17  
 43:7 45:23  
 46:17 49:25  
 53:18,21 54:4  
 55:1,3,6 56:20  
 57:1,7,20 58:4  
 58:8,17,25  
 59:3,8,12  
**warm** 46:5  
**warrants** 7:19  
 14:1  
**Warren** 35:12  
**wash** 35:17  
**Washington** 2:2  
 3:18 25:13  
 32:6 36:17  
 41:14 42:10,14  
 42:19,19 56:6  
 56:8 58:20  
**wasn't** 37:9  
 42:21 48:19  
**waste** 36:22 37:6  
**watch** 4:9,10  
 26:3  
**watching** 52:25  
**Watson** 3:19  
**way** 10:18 18:11  
 19:3 22:13  
 24:3 35:16  
 38:11 47:3,21  
 49:3,19 52:8  
**Wayne** 34:11 40:1  
 60:6,20  
**ways** 19:7  
**weapon** 17:18  
**weapons** 13:21  
 17:13,17,19,20  
**website** 5:2 43:4  
 43:6  
**week** 4:24 5:3  
 7:17 12:15,23

13:6 20:16,17  
 26:16,19 31:8  
 32:13 33:9  
 36:17 39:21  
 40:1  
**weeks** 10:7,9,12  
 29:22 43:22  
**weigh** 18:24  
**welcome** 3:5,12  
 24:8  
**Wellborn** 35:5,7  
 35:7 36:5,10  
 36:14  
**went** 26:5,8 42:9  
**Western** 10:17  
**Westside** 52:17  
**we'll** 4:18,19,20  
 20:19,20,23  
 26:23 27:5  
 33:22 34:16  
 38:8,19 41:13  
 43:4 45:25  
 52:13 53:25  
 57:9  
**we're** 4:16 5:16  
 5:19 7:20  
 14:25 16:15  
 17:1 18:12  
 20:15 22:25  
 23:2 24:16  
 25:23 28:17  
 29:3 43:12,15  
 44:23 45:6  
 47:1 51:15  
 52:5,6,7,8  
 53:23 54:1  
 55:8,9  
**we've** 13:2 31:4  
 34:12  
**white** 2:13 3:9  
 4:3,5 15:21  
 16:8,13,21  
 17:6,22 18:1  
 20:9 21:24,25  
 22:15 23:4  
 24:7 28:12  
 56:22 57:25  
 58:16,24 59:6  
**White's** 23:11  
**willing** 29:3,23  
 31:25 34:9  
**winding** 38:7

**wish** 27:21  
**witnessed** 47:13  
 47:25  
**witnesses** 54:24  
**women** 4:10 46:21  
 49:18 51:7  
**wondering** 52:23  
**Woodward** 1:16  
**work** 6:12 15:3,4  
 15:8 18:8 25:4  
 25:4 31:24  
 48:19 51:7,13  
 52:9  
**workers** 26:6  
 28:23  
**working** 32:12,25  
 34:12  
**Works** 15:7  
**world** 17:14  
**wouldn't** 25:1  
**wounds** 28:24  
**writing** 9:15  
**written** 11:11  
 14:17  
**wrong** 12:10  
 41:12 43:8  
 54:16

---

**Y**


---

**yards** 52:21  
**Yeah** 43:11  
**year** 14:11 21:4  
 21:6 30:5  
**years** 10:15 25:9  
 28:25 31:16  
 49:12  
**year-to-date**  
 21:5  
**yesterday** 26:4  
**young** 29:17  
**youth** 14:24

---

**Z**


---

**zoning** 36:11

---

**1**


---

**1** 1:14 60:21  
**1,121** 21:10  
**1,600** 25:10,11  
**1:00** 34:21  
**10th** 47:12  
**100** 16:2 47:2

50:5  
**1043** 56:5 58:13  
**11:00** 57:16  
**12** 21:7  
**1300** 2:5 27:15  
**135** 21:4,10,17  
 22:1  
**15.262B** 55:20  
**15.268A** 56:12  
**176** 21:4  
**19** 3:2  
**19th** 1:20 56:3

---

**2**


---

**2010** 48:13  
**2012** 1:20 3:2  
 21:3,6,8,11,13  
 21:17 27:14  
 56:3 60:21  
**22nd** 57:12  
**23** 21:5  
**24** 7:17 21:19  
**240** 21:17  
**25** 49:12  
**254** 21:9  
**26th** 5:7,8,12  
 27:14  
**260** 25:14  
**268** 24:15,22  
**27th** 5:8  
**28** 7:17  
**28-day** 11:22

---

**3**


---

**3rd** 14:1 34:21  
**3,000** 48:17  
**3:00** 27:14 57:16  
**3:12** 1:19 3:3  
**30** 5:12 25:2  
 32:8 49:12  
**300** 11:7  
**313** 2:7  
**328** 2:5  
**34** 21:19  
**35,000** 14:7  
**36th** 14:1

---

**4**


---

**40** 25:2  
**4181** 56:6 58:21  
**43** 21:11 22:2  
 28:13

45 32:8  
48226 1:18 2:6

---

5

---

5:32 59:14  
500 16:2 50:17  
51:2  
596-1835 2:7

---

6

---

6th 21:13  
60 1:14 52:19  
600 7:16  
674 21:6,10

---

7

---

7 7:17  
7042 60:18  
7310 1:16  
762 21:7

---

8

---

8th 21:15 58:21  
800 25:10

---

9

---

9:00 48:3  
90 24:13,15  
25:11  
911 48:23 49:4  
49:24